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Chris Parkhurst is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: Morris BOF Meeting 12/03/2020

Time: Dec 3, 2020 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting

https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/81912773805?pwd=aGk5YnhBZ3NuWnBRSUN5SZm5SraHBwUT09

Meeting ID: 819 1277 3805
Passcode: 569435
One tap mobile
+13017158592,,819127738054,,,,,,0#,,569435# US (Washington D.C)

+13126266799,,819127738054,,,,,,04,,569435# US (Chicago)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C)

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US {New York)

+1 253 215 8782 US {Tacoma)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 819 1277 3805

Passcode: 569435

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kFkB4MeK8
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The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm.

Present: Phil Birkett, Tracy Martin, Kristine Thoma, Adele Terrell (Alt.), Carrie Levine
Absent: Hunter Weik (Alt), David Fenn, Chris Parkhurst

Motion made by Phil Birkett to seat Adele Terrell. Carrie Levine seconded the motion. Motion was
approved unanimously, motion carried.

Motion made by Adele Terrell to set the Board of Finance Clerk rate at $15.00 per hour.
Phil Birkett seconded the motion. Motion was approved unanimously, motion carried.

Motion made by Adele Terrell to recommend Veronica Terrell to the Board of Selectmen to hire for the
Board of Finance Clerk position. Kris Thoma seconded the motion. Motion was approved unanimously,
motion carried.

There was no public comment.

Phil Birkett made the motion to adjourn at 7:47 pm. Adele Terrell seconded the motion. Motion was
approved unanimously, motion carried, meeting adjourned at 7:47 pm

Respectfully Submitied,
Kristine Thoma- Clerk
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C LE R M O NT Clermont & Associates, LLC

37 Waterbury Road
ACCOUNTANTS = ADVISORS Prospect CT 06712

Main: 203-758-6658
Fax: 203-758-6758

clermontaccounting.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Finance
Town of Morris, Connecticut
Morris, CT 06763

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Morris
Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Morris, Connecticut as of June 30, 2020, and the
respective changes in the financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3a through 3f and the required supplemental information relating to
pension on pages 39-44, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmaijor fund financial statements and schedules, the statement of changes in fund balance — by
project, the schedule of property taxes levied, collected and outstanding, and the schedule of debt
limitation are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, the statement of
changes in fund balance — by project, the schedule of property taxes levied, collected and outstanding,
and the schedule of debt limitation are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules described in the above
paragraph are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,
2020, on our consideration of the Town of Morris, Connecticut's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Town of Morris, Connecticut’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

CLERMONT & ASSOCIATES, LLC
Prospect, Connecticut

%M o155 Ceabs, (L

October 27, 2020



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

This discussion and analysis of the Town of Morris, Connecticut's (the “Town”) financial performance
is provided by management to provide an overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. Please read this MD&A in conjunction with the Town's financial statements.

Financial Highlights

Net position of our governmental activities increased by $1.77 million.
e Net position of our business-type activities decreased by $75 thousand.

e The General Fund reported a fund balance this year of $1.92 million;
$227 thousand more than the general fund balance reported in the prior year.

e The Town maintained a capital reserve fund balance of $536 thousand, this
decrease by $312 thousand from the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statemenis

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the
statement of activities (Exhibits A and B, respectively) provide information about the activities of the
Town as a whole and present a long-term view of the Town's finances. Fund financial statements are
presented in Exhibits C and D. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial
statements also report the Town's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by
providing information about the Town's most significant funds. In addition, the Town maintains the
Morris Sewer Authority as a proprietary fund (Exhibit G, H and I). The remaining statements provide
financial information about activities for which.-the Town acts solely.-as a trustee or agent for the
benefit of those outside of the government.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The analysis of the Town as a whole begins on Exhibits A and B. The statement of net position and
the statement of activities reports information about the Town as a whole and about its activities for
the current period. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the Town's net position and related changes. The Town's net position,
the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the Town's financial health, or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town's net position are one indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. The reader needs to consider other
nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the condition of the Town's
capital assets, to assess the overall health of the Town.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued)

In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, the Town reports its activities as

follows:

L]

Governmental activities - The Town's basic services are reported here, including
general government, public safety, community services, public works, education, public
library and municipal facilities. Property taxes, charges for services and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities - Morris Sewer Authority’s activity is reported here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements begin with Exhibit C and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds - not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State

Statute

. However, the Board of Selectman establishes many other funds to help control and manage

financial activities for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using
grants and other money (like grants received for education from the State and Federal governments).
The Town's funds are divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental funds (Exhibits C and D) - Most of the Town's basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
Town's programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported
in the statement of net position and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is
described in a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds (Exhibits G, H and 1) - When the Town charges customers for the services it
provides, whether to outside customers or to other units of the Town, these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that
all activities are reported in the statement of net position and the statement of activities.

Fiduciary funds (Exhibits J and K) - The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees'
pension plans. All of the Town's fiduciary activities are reported in separate statements of
fiduciary net assets and changes in fiduciary net position. These activities are excluded from
the Town's other financial statements because the Town cannot use these assets to finance
its operations. The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the
Town's governmental activities. The Town's net position for governmental activities increased $1.77

million from $7.8 million in 2019 to $9.6 million in 2020.

Table 1: Net Position (In Thousands)

Governmental Activities

2020 2019
Current and other assets 3,549,408 3,819,240
Capital assets 7,386,099 5,345,593
Deferred inflows 233,635 204,993
Total assets & deferred inflows 11,169,042 9,369,826
Current and other liabilities 611,218 613,574
Deferred outflows 35,525 26,432
Long-term liabilities 929,147 1,041,690
Total liabilities & deferred outflows 1,575,890 1,681,696
Net position:
Investment in capital assets 7,386,099 5,345,593
Unrestricted 2,207,053 2,342 537
Total net position 9,593,152 7,688,130

Table 2: Change In Net Assets (In Thousands)

Governmental Activities

2020 2019
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 199,416 186,754
Operating grants and contributions 227,242 421,938
Capital grants and contributions 1,831,802 68,077
General revenues:

Property taxes 9,057,711 9,009,603
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific purposes 52,089 26,966
Unrestricted investment earnings and other revenues 48,946 113,683
Other general revenues (and transfers) 12,894 128,588

Total revenues 11,430,100 9,955,609

Program expenses:

General government 1,353,634 1,096,158
Public safety 412,001 479,533
Public works 1,671,447 1,608,991
Health and welfare 15,119 15,340
Culture and recreation 335,824 406,443
Education 5,975,180 6,130,762

Total program expenses 9,663,105 9,737,227
Increase (decrease) in net position 1,766,995 218,382
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Town Funds Financial Analysis

Governmental Funds

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet -
Exhibit C) reported a combined fund balance of $2.7 million which was a $360 thousand decrease
from the previous year. Included in this year’s total change in fund balance was a $312 thousand
decrease in the capital projects fund and an increase of $227 thousand in the general fund. The
decrease in the capital projects fund is mainly due to spend down of the capital reserve fund.

Proprietary Funds

The Town reports the Sewer Authority as a proprietary fund (Exhibit G, H, and 1). Under this
presentation, the operating loss was $74 thousand, which included depreciation expense of $66
thousand. Net fund position at year end included $1.3 million of net capital investment and $397
thousand unrestricted.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Exhibit F shows the summary information of budget to actual revenues, expenditures and changes
in undesignated, unreserved fund balance (funds available to be appropriated).

o Property tax collections and building inspection fees were slightly more than expected
as well as total revenues.

o All departments expended less than the budgeted amounts with the largest savings in
the general government.

The fund balance was $1.92 million of which the majority was without restrictions or assignments
and available to appropriate.
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Capital Assets

At June 30, 2020, the Town had approximately $7.4 million invested in a broad range of capital
assets, including land, buildings, park facilities, vehicles and equipment, roads, bridges, and sewer
lines. The total Town’s amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of
$2 million net of depreciation expenses. The large increase includes the reconstruction of a bridge,
which was mostly funded through state and federal grants.

Table 3: Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental
Activities
2020 2019
Land $ 448,223 448,223
Construction in progress : 1,697,203 . 198,482
Buildings and improvements 1,042,056 993,600
Land improvements 702,196 718,496
Machinery and equipment 716,327 518,847
Infrastructure 2,780,094 2,467,945
Totals $ 7,386,099 5,345,593

Business-type
Activities
2020 2019
Sewer collection system : $ 1,398,917 1,464,747
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Table 4: Qutstanding Debt (In Thousands)

Long-Term Liabilities

At June 30, 2020 the Town had $995,082 in long-term liabilities versus $1,128,156 last year.

The Town’s only outstanding debt is to the Town of Litchfield for the amount of $65,935, paid
annually through the collections of sewer assessment fees.

Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave, and net pension and the monitoring

of the Town’s landfill closure. More detailed information about the Town's long-term liabilities is
presented in Note 8 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The Town's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-year
2020 budget tax rates.

e The economy in Connecticut and particularly Litchfield County impact development in the
Town.

Reductions in State of Connecticut grant revenues for the past 2 years.

Imposition of unfunded State mandates including the effects of COVID-19.

L]

Board of Selectmen continue to be diligent in ensuring that services are provided to Morris
residents and the assets are well maintained while managing costs.

These indicators along with a projected modest inflationary increase were taken into account when
proposing the General Fund budget for 2020-21.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the Town's Treasurer at 3 East Morris Street, Morris, Connecticut, 06763.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total*
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,584,302 359,073 2,943,375
Investments 298,287 298,287
Receivables, net 666,569 37,841 704,410
Prepaid expenses 250 250
Internal balances . -
Capital assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated 2,145,426 2,145,426
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,240,673 1,398,917 6,639,580
Total assets $ 10,935,507 1,785,831 12,731,338
Deferred outflows on resources:
Deferred pension expenses 3 233,535 233,535
$ 233,535 - 233,535
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilites $ 611,218 611,218
Unearned revenues -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year - 20,945 20,945
Due in more than one year 929,147 44,990 974,137
Total liabilities $ 1,540,365 65,935 1,606,300
Deferred inflows on resources:
Deferred pension credit $ 35,525 35,625
Total deferred inflow on resources $ 35,625 - 35,525
Net position:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  § 7,386,099 1,332,082 8,719,081
Unrestricted : 2,207,053 396,914 2,603,967
Total net position $ 9,683,152 1,729,896 11,323,048

* After internal balances have been eliminated

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program
Revenues

Charges for

Functions/programs Expenses Services
Primary government:
Governmental activities: .
General government 1,353,534 135,791
Public safety 412,001
Public works 1,571,447 27,489
Public health 15,119
Cultural and recreation 335,824 36,136
Education 5,975,180
Total governmental activities 9,663,105 199,416
Business-fype activities:
Sewer Authority 162,706
Interest on long-term debt 1,042
Total business-type activities 164,248 -
Total primary government 9,827,353 199,416

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




EXHIBIT B

Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Government
Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
115,251 (1,102,492) (1,102,492)
{412,001) (412,001)
1,831,802 287,844 287,844
(15,119) (15,119)
(299,688) (299,688)
111,991 (5,863,189) (5,863,189)
227,242 1,831,802 (7,404,645) - (7,404,645)
85,693 (77,013) (77,013)
{1,542) {1,542)
- 85,693 - (78,555) (78,555)
227,242 1,917,495 (7,404,645) (78,555) (7,483,200)

General revenues:

Property taxes $ 9,057,711 9,057,711
Grants and contributions not
restricted for specific programs 52,089 52,089
Unrestricted investment earnings 48,946 3,678 52,624
Sale of assetls 8,700 8,700
Other unrestricted income © 4,194 : 4,194
Total general revenues $ 9,171,640 3,678 9,175,318
Change in net position $ 1,766,995 (74,877) 1,692,118
Net position, beginning 7,826,157 1,804,773 9,630,930
Net position, ending $ 9,593,152 1,729,896 11,323,048




TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBIT C
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2020
Other Total
Capitai & Governmental Governmental
General Nonrecurring Funds Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,816,327 596,847 171,128 2,584,302
Investments 11,457 263,745 23,085 298,287
Receivables, net 283,805 382,764 666,569
Due from other funds 370,694 218 370,912
Prepaid expenses 250 250
Total assets 2,482,533 1,243,356 194,431 3,920,320
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts and other payables 275,516 335,702 611,218
Due to other funds 370,812 370,912
Total liabilities 275,516 706,614 - 982,130
Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable receipts 287,267 287,267
Payment in advance -
Total deferred inflows of resources 287,267 - - 287,267
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 250 250
Committed for:

Specified use 33,388 121,884 129,390 284,662
Assigned 404,114 65,041 469,155
Unassigned 1,886,112 10,744 1,896,856

Total fund balances 1,919,750 536,742 194 431 2,650,923

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances 2,482,533 1,243,356 194,431
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) are different because:
Capital assets used in the governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not

reported in the funds. 7,386,099
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures,' and therefore,

are deferred in the funds. 287,267
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and

therefore, are not reported in the funds. (929,147)
Pension costs, including differences between expected and actual pension experiences, change in

pension assumptions and net difference between projected and actual pension earnings. 198,010

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) 9,583,152

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBITD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments 8,965,547 8,965,547
Intergovernmental 164,080 1,653,872 293,181 2,111,133
Charges for services 163,280 14,206 177,486
Investment income 36,528 11,235 1,183 48,946
Miscellaneous 12,894 21,930 34,824
Total revenues 9,342,329 1,665,107 330,500 11,337,936
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,039,457 1,039,457
Public safety 398,968 398,968
Public works 949,639 357,951 1,307,590
Public health 15,119 15,119
Culture and recreation 288,067 22,744 310,811
Education 5,975,180 : 5,975,180
Other 218,400 224,902 443,302
Capital outlay 2,207,149 2,207,149
Total expenditures 8,884,830 2,207,149 605,597 11,897,576
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 457,499 (542,042) (275,097) (359,640)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds 230,000 230,000
Transfer to other funds (230,000) (230,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (230,000) 230,000 - -
Net changes in fund balances 227,499 (312,042) (275,097) (359,640)
Fund balances (deficits) - beginning 1,692,251 848,784 468,528 3,010,563
Fund balances (deficits) - ended 1,819,750 536,742 194,431 2,650,923

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBITE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Differences in amounts reported for government-wide activities in the Statement of Activities are due to:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds {Exhibit D) $ (359,640)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in
the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 2,040,506

Revenues previously recognized in the statement of activities that provided
current financial resources in the current year. 92,164

The issuance of long-term liabilities provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. (112,543)

Pension expenses and credits as a result of changes in assumptions and
expectation are recognized in the government wide financial statements
but are not included in the fund financial statements. 106,508

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B) $ 1,766,995

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBIT F
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGETARY BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Actual Variance With
Amounis Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive/
Original Final Basis (Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 8,905,847 8,905,847 8,965,547 59,700
Intergovernmental 163,750 153,750 164,080 10,330
Charges for services 113,285 113,285 163,280 49,995
Investment income 27,000 27,000 36,528 9,528
Other revenues 30,000 30,000 12,894 (17,106)
Total revenues $ 9,229,882 9,229,882 9,342,329 112,447
Expenditures:
Current:
General government $ 1,013,328 1,065,698 1,020,489 45,209
Public safety 439,084 439,388 398,968 40,420
Public works 925,646 036,839 899,089 37,750
Health and welfare 16,528 18,528 15,119 1,409
Cultural and recreation 293,466 300,341 288,067 12,274
Education 5,992,880 5,992,880 5,975,180 17,700
Other 318,950 248,208 218,400 29,808
Capital improvement 230,000 230,000 230,000 -
Total expenditures $ 9,229,882 9,220,882 9,045,312 184,570
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - - 297,017 297,017
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from surplus $ - -
Total other financing sources (uses) $ - - - -
Revenues over expenditures and other
financing sources {uses) % - ) - 297,017 297,017
Net change in unassigned fund balance 297,017
Unassigned fund balance, July 1, 2018 1,688,085
Unassigned fund balance, June 30, 2020 1,886,112

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET FUND POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

EXHIBITG

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net of allowance
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Notes payable - current
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable, less current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net fund position:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Unrestricted
Total net fund position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type
Activities

Sewer

Authority

369,073
37,841

396,914

1,398,017

1,398,917

1,795,831

20,9456
20,945

44,990

44,990

65,935

1,332,982
396,914

1,729,896




TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBIT H

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET FUND POSITION (DEFICIT)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type

Activities
Sewer
Authority
Operating revenues: '
Charges for services and other revenues $ 85,693
Total operating revenues $ 85,693
Operating expenses:
Administration and operation $ 96,876
Depreciation 65,830
Total operating expenses $ 162,706
Operating income (loss) 3 (77,013)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income $ 3,678
interest expense (1,542}
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) $ 2,136
Change in net fund position $ (74,877)
Net fund position, beginning 1,804,773
Net fund position, ending _ $ 1,729,896

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

EXHIBITI

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Transfer in and payments made through governmental activities
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Interest payments on capital debt
Principal payments on capital debt
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Transfer from investments
Interest received on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in})
operating activities:
Operating income (loss) :
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivable accounts
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash flows from operating activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13

$

$

$

$

$

Business-type
Activities

Sewer
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106,443
(105,682)

761

(1,542)
(20,532)

: (22,074)

3,678
3,678

(17,635)
376,708

359,073

(77,013)

65,830

20,750
(8,8086)
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT EXHIBIT J

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,312
Investments, at fair value 1,385,076
Total assets $ 1,389,388
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses $ (8,020)
Net position:
Held in trust for benefits

and other purposes $ 1,397,408

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

EXHIBIT K

Additions:
Contributions:
Contributions and donations
Total contributions
Investment earnings:
Net increase in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Less: investment expenses
Total investment earnings
Total additions
Deductions:
Administrative
Benefits
Total deductions
Change in net position
Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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24
26,585

211,685
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109,263

1,288,145

1,397,408



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Town of Morris, Connecticut (the Town) was incorporated in 1859. |t operates under a
Selectmen/Town Meeting form of government with a Board of Finance and provides general
government, public safety, public works, recreation, health and welfare, and sanitation services.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting board
for governmental accounting financial reporting principles. These principles require that the
Town report government-wide and fund financial statements.

The following is a summary of the Town's more significant accounting principles.
Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Changes in Net Position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of
the primary government. Government activities, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately than business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment of, are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and confributions that are restricted to
‘meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity, or internal balances, has been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges between the
business-type funds and the various other functions of the Town. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Fund financial statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds even though the later are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability has occurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to long-term liabilities, such as debt service
payments and compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes are levied on all taxable assessed property on the grand list of October 1 prior to
the beginning of the fiscal year. Real estate taxes are payable in two installments (July 1 and
January 1). Personal property taxes are payable annually (July 1) and motor vehicle taxes are
due in one single payment on July 1. Liens are filed on delinquent real estate taxes within one
year. Revenues from property taxes are recognized when they become available. Available
means due, or past due, and receivable within the current period or expected to be coliected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Town considers property tax revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the fiscal year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, special assessments and interest
revenue. Fines, permits and charges for services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

Intergovernmental revenue grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligible
requirements imposed by the provider have been met and are collected soon enough to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, grants may be recognized and received after
60 days of the fiscal year end.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the general operating fund of the Town’s government. All
unrestricted resources, except those required to be accounted for in another funds, are
accounted for in this fund. From this fund are paid general operating expenditures, fixed
charges, principal and interest on long-term debt and capital improvement costs of the
Town, which were not paid through a special fund.

The capital and nonrecurring fund is used to account for resources used for capital

expenditures or for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities, improvements and
equipment. Sources of revenue include current tax revenues and government grants.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Morris Sewer Authority (S.A.) accounts for the operations of the Town's
wastewater treatment system. The Town contracts with the Town of Litchfield,
Connecticut’'s Water Pollution Control Authority to treat sewage collected in Morris, and
to maintain sewage pumping stations and collection system. lIts collection operations
are managed by the S.A. and financed from direct charges to the users of the service.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund type:

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for assets held by the Town in a
trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. An example includes the Morris
Public Library, which maintains the assets received through contributions, fees and
charges of the library.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and the enterprise funds reported in the
proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
. contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their government-wide and
propriety fund financial statements subject to this same limitation. The Town has elected not to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to customers for services.
Operating expenses for enterprise and internal service funds include the cost of operations and
maintenance, provisions for doubtful accounts, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and cash equivalents

The Town considers cash on hand, deposits and short-term investments, with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments are stated at the fair value using quoted market prices.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds”
(current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (noncurrent portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and
business type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances”.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable as financial resources. ' '

All trade and property tax receivables, including those for Sewer Authority funds, are shown net
of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Trade account receivables allowance for
uncollectible accounts is estimated based on the inherent risk associated with the accounts.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $20,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years.

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the net
assets or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
" Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of the business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives with a capitalization threshold of $5,000:

Asset Years
Buildings and improvements 5-40
Land improvements 50

Infrastructure (including sewer system) 30-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

Capital assets are reported as expenditures and no depreciation expense is reported in the
governmental fund financial statements.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

The Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) reports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial element represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period or periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
until a future period. The Town reports borrowing costs as well as a deferred charge on
refunding as a result from the differences in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. These amounts are deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the
related debt. A deferred outflow of resources related to pension results from differences
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs, and the net
difference between projected and actual pension investment earnings.

The Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) and the Balance Sheet for the government funds
(Exhibit C) report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
element represents the addition of net position or fund balance that applies to future periods and
will not be recognized as revenue until that time. The Town reports advance tax collections in
the Statement of Net Position and the Balance Sheet for the government funds. The Town
reports a deferred inflow of resources related to pensions in the Statement of Net Position.

A deferred inflow of resources related to pension results from differences between expected and
actual experience. These amounts are deferred and included in pension expense in a
systematic and rational manner. The government funds report unavailable revenue, which
arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting because it does not meet the
measurable and available criteria for the recognition in the current period.

Compensated absences

Under the terms of its various union contracts, Town employees are granted vacation and sick
time in varying amounts based on length of service. Certain employees may also carry over a
fimited number of unused vacation days to subsequent years based on the terms of an
employment or union contract. In the event of termination, these employees are reimbursed for
accumulated vacation. The Town recognizes a liability in the government-wide financial
statements for the vested portion, as well as the unvested portion to the extent expected to be
"paid, as compensated absences. ’ ' '

Net pension liability

The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected
benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension liability), net of the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The pension plan’s fiduciary net position is determined
using the same valuation methods that are used by the pension plan for purposes of preparing
its Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. The net pension liability is measured as of a date
(measurement date) no earlier than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently
applied from period to period.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the terms of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the
debt issued is reported as other financial sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund equity and net position

In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following
categories:

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt - This category groups all capital
assets, including infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated
depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of these assets reduce this category.

The unrestricted net position represents the net position of the Town which are not
restricted for any project or other purpose.

In the fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are classified into five
separate categories. The five categories and their general meanings are as follows:

Nonspendable are those net assets that are not in expendable form or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained.

Restricted fund balances are defined in the same manner as for the restricted
government-wide net assets.

Committed fund balances are those balances that can only be used for a specific
purpose as a result of constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s highest
level of decision-making authority. For the Town of Morris, that was considered to be
the Board of Selectmen.

Assigned fund balances are amounts that are contained by the government's intent to be
used as a specific purpose.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Fund equity and net position — {continued)

Unassigned fund balance is defined as the residual classification for the general fund
and includes those remaining balances that cannot be categorized in the four categories.

Fair value of financial instruments

In accordance with GASB 72, the Town is required to measure the fair value of its assets and
liabilities under a three-level hierarchy, as follows:

e Level 1: Quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities to which an entity has
access to at the measurement date. ’

e Level 2: Inputs and information other than quoted market indices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs
include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active;

Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the assets or liability;

Inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market

data by correlation or by other means.

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs should be
used to measure the fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability developed from sources independent of the reporting
entity; and unobservable inputs reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions
about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances.

Investments are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices and are presented in Note
4,

Note 2 - Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
General Fund

The Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance — Budgetary Basis
— Budget to Actual presented in the financial statements for the General Fund is on the
budgetary basis of accounting which is a basis of accounting other than the accrual basis and
the modified basis of accounting. The budgetary basis of accounting and the Town's general
budget policies are as follows:

A. Prior to July 1 of each year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution.

B. The Board of Finance is authorized to f{ransfer budgeted amounts between
appropriations as deemed appropriate.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Note 2 - Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (continued)

C. The formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year.

D. Legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is at the department level.

E. All Town transfers $20,000 or greater require approval from the Board of Finance and

the approval of the Town Meeting.

A reconciliation of General Fund operations and fund balance presented on a budgetary basis
to the amounts presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) is as follows:

Expenditures

and

Revenues Encumbrances

Balance, budgetary basis $ 9,342,329 9,045,312
Special appropriation of surplus:

Encumbrances as of June 30, 2018 75,648

Encumbrances as of June 30, 2020 (6,130)

Reclassified as other sources / uses (230,000)

Balance, GAAP basis $ 9,342,329 8,884,830

Special Revenue Funds

The Town does not have legally adopted annual budgets for the Special Revenue Funds.
Budgets for the various special revenue funds which are utilized to account for specific grant
programs are established in accordance with the requirements of the grantor agencies. Such
budgets carry over until completion of the grants and, therefore, may comprise more than one
fiscal year.

Capital Projects Funds

Legal authorization for expenditures of the Capital Projects Funds is provided by the related
bond ordinances and/or intergovernmental grant agreements or Connecticut State Statutes,
Capital appropriations do not lapse until the purpose for which the appropriation was made has
been accomplished or abandoned.
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Note 3 - Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Government Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The details of the components included in Exhibit C are as follows:

Capitalized assets are expensed in the fund financial statements in the period the expense is
incurred while the expense is incurred over the useful life of the related asset in the
government-wide financial statements:

Land $ 448,223
Construction in progress 1,697,203
Net capital assets being depreciated 5,240,673
Net adjustment to increase fund balance to arrive

at net position of government activities $ 7,386,099

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The detail of this difference is as follows:

Compensated absences $ (45,394)
Net pension obligation (603,829)
Landfili closure (279,924)
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance to arrive

at net position of government activities $ (929,147)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the funds. This amount includes the following:

Delinquent property tax and interest 3 287,267
Net adjustment to increase fund balance to
arrive at net position of government activities $ 287,267

Certain pension costs are recognized in the government-wide financial statements as deferred
inflows and outflows but are not due or available for the current period and, therefore, are not
recognized in the funds. These amounts include the following:

Difference between expected and actual experiences $ 124,693
Changes in assumptions 35,149
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 73,693
Difference between expected and actual experiences (35,525)
Net adjustment to increase fund balance to arrive at

net position of the government activities $ 198,010
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
includes reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that "governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details
of this difference are as follows:

Acquisitions $ 916,432
Disposals N
Depreciation (374,647)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund
balances to arrive at changes in net position of
governmental activities $ 541,785

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas, these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities." The details
of this difference are as follows:

Net change in compensated absences $ (14,391)
Net change in landfill closure (87,048)
Net change in pension obligation (11,104)

Net adjustment to reduce net changes in fund
balances to arrive at changes in net position of
governmental activities $ (112,543)
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

Note 4 - Deposits and Investments

The Town's deposits and investments are presented in the accompanying balance sheets as
follows:

Deposit Investments Total

Cash and cash equivalents:

Governmental funds 3 2,584,302 2,584,302

Business-type activities 359,073 359,073

Fiduciary funds : 4,312 ~ 4,312
Investments:

Governmental funds 298,287 298,287

Fiduciary funds 1,385,076 1,385,076
Total deposits and investments $ 2,947 687 1,683,363 4,631,050

Deposits

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-402).
Deposits may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by Statute or, in amounts not
exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit, in an “out of state bank”
as defined by the Statutes, which is not a “qualified public depository.”

The carrying amounts of the Town's deposits at June 30, 2020 consist of the following:

Bank deposit accounts $ 2,734,623

Certified deposits 201,343
Cash on hand : 150
Total deposits $ 2,936,116

Custodial credit risk

As of June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the Town’s deposits had bank balances of
approximately $2,898,341. The amount of the bank balance covered under federal depository
insurance was approximately $400,000. The remaining deposits were uninsured, however,
provisions of the Connecticut General Statutes provide for protection against loss in excess of
deposit insurance by requiring all qualified public depositories to maintain segregated collateral
for public deposits. As of June 30, 2020, approximately $250,000 of uninsured deposits were
collateralized under the provision.

investments

Investments are reported at fair value using quoted market prices (Level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy).
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
June 30, 2020

As of June 30, 2020, the Town held the following investments:

Maturities
Less than
Investment Type Fund Fair Value 1 Year Risk
State Investment Fund General Fund $ 11,457 11,457 N/A
State Investment Fund Capital Reserve 263,744 263,744 N/A
Money Market Library Fund 282 282 N/A
Mutual Funds Library Fund 22,803 22,803 N/A
Money Market Trust Funds 14,055 14,055 N/A
Mutual Funds Trust Funds 1,371,021 1,371,021 AAA-BB
Total Investments $ 1,683,362 1,683,362

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates which will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town has, for the Pension Trust Funds, an investment
policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates. ' ‘

Credit risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. It is the Town’s policy to invest only in securities that
meet the ratings requirements set by General State Statute, Chapter 112, Section 7-400.

Note 5 - Receivables, Deferred Revenue and Payables
Receivables
The receivables as of June 30, 2020 for the Town's individual major funds and non-major,

internal service and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowance for
uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Governmental Funds

General Capital Sewer
Fund Projects Authority Total

Property taxes $ 2158617 215,617
Interest 73,306 73,306
Governmental 382,764 . 382,764
Accounts 4,501 4,501
Assessments 33,340 33,340
Less: allowance (5,118) (5,118)
Net total

receivables $ 283,805 382,764 37,841 704,410
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Deferred Payments and Unavailable Receipts

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities in the current period. Governmental funds
also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but not yet
earned. At the end of the fiscal year the components of deferred revenue and unearned
revenues reported in the governmental fund were as follows:

Payables

Payables as of June 30, 2020 for the Town’s individual major funds and non-major funds were
as follows:

Vendors Payroll Total
General Fund $ 228,510 47,006 275,516
Capital Projects Fund 335,702 335,702
Total payables $ 564,212 47,006 611,218

Note 6 - Inter-fund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Inter-fund Receivables and Payables

Inter-fund receivables and payables at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Capital Projects $ 370,694
Town Road Aid Capital Projects 218

Total $ 370,912

Inter-fund Transfers

The Town transferred $230,000 from the general fund to the capital projects fund to be assigned
for future capital projects.
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Note 7 - Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 448,223 448,223

Construction in progress 198,482 1,498,721 1,697,203
Total capital assets, not being deprec. $ 646,705 1,498,721 v 2,145 426
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 3 2,320,538 96,179 2,416,718

Land improvements 1,001,863 16,000 1,017,863

Machinery and equipment 2,519,747 267,633 38,802 2,748,578

Infrastructure 6,540,571 536,620 7,077,191

Total capital assets being depreciated $ 12,382,720 916,432 38,802 13,260,350

Less: accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements $ 1,326,939 47,723 1,374,662

Land improvements 283,367 32,300 315,667

Machinery and equipment 2,000,900 70,153 38,802 2,032,251

Infrastructure 4072626 224 471 4,297,097

Total accumulated depreciation 3 7,683,832 374,647 38,802 8,019,677

Net capital assets, being depreciated $ 4,698,888 541,785 5,240,673
Total capital assets, governmental $ 5,345,593 2,040,506 - 7,386,099

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 52,873
Public safety 13,033
Public works 294,899
Recreation 13,842
Total depreciation expense 3 374,647
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Business-type activities:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Sewers $ 3,281,598 3,281,598
Total capital assets being depreciated 3 3,281,598 3,281,598
Less: accumulated depreciation 1,816,851 65,830 1,882,681
Total capital assets, business-type $ 1,464,747 (65,830) 1,398,917
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Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term debt liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Due in
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Compensated absences  $ 59,785 14,391 45,394
Net pension liability 614,933 11,104 603,829
Landfill closure 366,972 87,048 279,924
- Total governmental :

activities long-term

liabilities $ 1,041,690 , 112,543 920,147

Business-type activities:

Inter-municipal debt $ 86,466 20,531 65,935 20,945
Total business-type
activities long-term :
liabilities - $ 86,466 : 65935 - 20,945
Total long-term liabilities $ 1,128,156 , 133,074 995,082 20,945

Sewage Treatment — Town of Litchfield

Pursuant to a 1984 agreement between the Towns of Morris and Litchfield, the Town of
Litchfield receives and treats sanitary sewage from the Town of Morris at the Litchfield Sewage
Treatment Plant. The agreement also requires the Town of Morris to proportionately finance the
sewage treatment plant’s upgrade costs originally funded through the State of Connecticut
Clean Water Fund loan program. The original debt to the Town of Litchfield was $214,5683. The
terms of the loan include annual principal and interest (2%) payments as follows:

Fiscal

Year . Principal . Interest

2021 $ 20,045 1,128

2022 21,368 706

2023 21,799 274

2024 1,823 3
Total 3 65,935 2,111

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

The Town has a closed landfill with no further capacity or estimated useful life. State and federal
laws and regulations require that the Town perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions on its closed landfill site for thirty years after closure. These costs will be paid through
the General Fund each year as part of the annual budget. Total estimated costs based on the
current actual costs are included in the long-term debt. The Town's estimated costs to monitor
the landfill for the next three years are $10,705 at June 30, 2020. This amount is based on
estimates that are subject to change due to inflation, technology or applicable laws and
regulations.
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingencies

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss including torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health; and natural disasters.
The Town generally obtains commercial insurance for these risks. For all types of commercial
coverage, settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.

The Town is a member of the Connecticut Interlock Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), a
public entity risk pool established under the provisions of Connecticut General Statutes section
7-479a. The Town is liable only for contributions to the pool. Members do not retain the risk of
loss, as they have transferred the risk by purchasing coverage with no deductible retention.

The Town received federal and state grants for specific purposes and is subject to review and
audit by the grantor agency for compliance and disallowed expenses under the grant.
Management believes that such disallowances, if any, will not be material to- the financial
position of the Town.

The spread of the COVID-19 virus has causes business disruption throughout the United States
and in the State of Connecticut specifically through the State of Connecticut Executive Orders.
While disruption is expected to be temporary, there is a considerable uncertainty concerning the
duration and financial impact of this disruption. Although the Town does not expect this matter
to negatively impact its financial condition, results of operation, or cash flow, the extent of the
financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

Regional School District

The Town is a member of Regional School District #6, which provides education for grades
kindergarten through twelfth for the Towns of Morris, Goshen and Warren. As of June 30, 2020,
the outstanding bonded indebtedness of the District was $1,960,000. The Town of Morris's
share of this debt is 38.45%. These are general obligations of the Regional School District and
its Town members.
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Note 10 - Fund Balance

As of June 30, 2020, the governmental fund balance are composed of the following

Capital and
General Nonrecurring Nonmajor Total
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenses $ 250 250
Resiricted
Bridges program ' 121,884 121,884
Commitied
Contract 33,388 33,388
Town roads 218 218
Fire safety 129,172 129,172
Capital projects 404,114 404,114
Assigned
Capital projects ’ ' 10,744 : 10,744
Culture and recreation 65,041 65,041
Unassigned 1,886,112 1,886,112
1,919,750 536,742 194,431 2,650,923

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Plans
Plan description and benefits provided

The Town is the administrator of two single-employer Public Employee Retirement System
(PERS) established and administered to provide pension benefits for its employees and
volunteer firemen. The two PERS are considered to be a part of the Town's financial reporting
entity and is included in these financial statements as pension trust funds. The Town's pension
plans do not use issue stand-alone financial statements.

Town Retirement Plan

The plan covers substantially all full time union employees of the Town and the Town Clerk.
These employees are eligible to participate in the Town plan when they complete one year of
eligible service, are a part of the Town’s bargaining unit (excluding the Town Clerk), and have
attained the age of eighteen. Additionally, the employees cannot be covered by any other
retirement program that the Town contributes to, with the exception of the Town of Morris Fire
Department. Participants are 100% vested after five years of credited service.
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Benefits are 1.6% of final average pay times years of credited service. Normal retirement age is
sixty-five. Early retirement is permitted with a reduced benefit.

Management of the plan rests with the PERS Committee, which consists of three voting
members. Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board of Selectmen. The
appointment requires a unanimous Board approval.

Morris Volunteer Fire Department Plan

This defined benefit retirement plan covers substantially all volunteer firemen who belong to the
Morris Volunteer Fire Department (“MVFD"). MVFD volunteer firemen are eligible to participate
in the MVFD plan as of July 1 following the date they complete one year of eligible service and
have attained the age of eighteen.

The Morris Volunteer Fire Department formally disbanded on June 30, 2018. The plan consists
of only inactive members as of that date and benefits no longer accrue.

Normal retirement age is sixty-five and benefits are paid monthly. Annual benefits are
calculated based on years of service. There is no provision for early retirement.

The death benefit under the plan is equal to the participant's accrued benefits at the date of
June 30, 2018, the date the Morris Volunteer Fire Department disbanded. Participants are fully
vested after five years of service.

Benefits are $5 per month for each year of credited services. No participant shall accrue more
than $150 per month.

Membership in the plans consisted of the following at July 1, 2016 the date of the actuarial
valuation applicable to the June 30, 2018 employer actuarially determined contribution:

Morris
Volunteer
Fire
Department

Town Plan Plan

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 8 10
Terminated plan members entitled to, but not yet

receiving benefits 4 24
Active plan members 8 0
Total 20 34

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of Accounting

Financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting for the two defined
benefit pension plans. There are no member contributions. Employer contributions are
recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the contributions has been made.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the
plans. Administrative costs are financed through the Town’s budgeted expenses.
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Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at
the last reported sales price. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Funding policy

The Town is required to contribute amounts necessary to fund the plans. State of Connecticut
Statutes assign the authority to establish and amend the contribution provisions of the plans to
the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Morris. Members do not contribute to the plans. The
Town’s contributions to the plans are actuarially determined on an annual basis. The Town has
a policy to pay at least the greater of 40% of the actuarial determined employer contribution or
80% of the prior year's actual contribution up to 100% of the actuarially determined employer
contribution.

Investments

Investment Policy

The pension plan's policy in regard to allocation of invested assets is established and may be
amended by the PERS Board by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the PERS
Board to pursue an investment strategy that increases the return on each plan’s portfolio with
minimal risk exposure to the Pension Funds. The policy states that no more than 10% of each
plan’s portfolio may be invested in a single security of one corporation.

Any security held in the account must be listed on a national and recognized exchange such as
NYSE, NASDAQ, AMEX, or OTC.

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the money-weighted rate of return on the pension plan
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 3.04% for the Town Plan and -3.42%
for the Volunteer Fire Department Plan. The money-weighted rate of return expresses
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually
invested.
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Net pension liability of the plans

The Town and MVFD Plan net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2020.

The components of the net pension liability of the Town at June 30, 2020 were as follows:

MVFD
Town Plan Plan Total
- Total pension liability : $ 1,875,350 156,113 2,031,463
Plan fiduciary net position 1,259,649 129,751 1,389,400
Net pension liability $ 615,701 26,362 642,063
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 67.17% 83.11% 68.39%

Actuarial assumptions -

The total pension liability was determined by actuarial data as of July 1, 2020, using the
following actuarial assumption, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

MVFD
Town Plan Plan
Inflation 2.25% 2.25%
Salary increase 3.50% n/a
Investment rate of return 6.75%, per year 6.75%, per year

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 adjusted for 2006 with MP-2017 mortality
_ improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 data were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020.

Long-term rate of return
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return

(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class.
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Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75% for the Town Plan and
the MVFD Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Town
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined

contribution rates and the member rates.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's

fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability.

Changes in the net pension liability

Town Plan

Balances as of June 30, 2019

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest cost on total pension liability
Difference between expected and actual

experience

Change in assumptions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Net investment income

Administrative expenses
Benefit payments, including refund of employee

contributions

Net changes

Balances as of June 30, 2020

Increase (Decrease)

Total Net
Pension Plan Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)
$ 1,737,028 1,166,874 570,154
$ 42,924 - 42,924
114,145 - 114,145
78,313 - 78,313
(5,066) (5,066)
- 166,150 (166,150)
- 23,789 (23,789)
- (5.170) 5170
(91,994) (91,994) -
$ 138,322 92,775 45,547
3 1,875,350 1,259,649 615,701
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Morris Volunteer Fire Department Plan

Increase (Decrease)

Total Net
Pension Plan Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances as of June 30, 2019 $ 166,269 121,490 44779
Changes for the year:
Service cost $ - -
Interest cost on total pension liability ' 10,912 ‘ - 10,912
Difference between expected and actual
experience (11,347) - (11,347)
Employer contributions - 18,950 (18,950)
Net investment income - 3,478 (3,478)
Change in assumption (489) - (489)
Administrative expenses . . - . (4,935) 4,935
Benefit payments, including refund of employee
contributions (9,232) (9,232) -
Net changes 3 (10,156) 8,261 (18,417)
Balances as of June 30, 2020 $ 156,113 129,751 26,362

Changes in assumptions or other inputs

Mortality for Pre- and Post-Retirement is calculated using RP-2014 (adjusted) with MP-2017
mortality rates, which is a change from the previously used RP-2000 projected to valuation date
using Scale AA.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liabilities of the Plans, calculated using the discount rate
of 6.75%, as well as what the net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percent point lower (5.75%) or 1 percent higher (7.75%) than the current
rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Town Plan net pension liability 3 817,168 705,223 444,341
MVFD Plan net pension liability $ 46,298 44,779 9,960
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Pension trust funds

The Town maintains two pension trust funds (Town Employees’ Plan and Morris Volunteer Fire
Department Plan) to account for its fiduciary responsibility. The following schedules present the
net position held in trust for pension benefits at June 30, 2020 and the changes in net position
for the year then ended.

Schedule of Net Position
Morris
Town Volunteer Fire
Retirement - Department :
Plan Plan Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 118 4,194 4,312
Investments 1,251,628 125,546 1,377,174
Total assets $ 1,251,746 129,740 1,381,486
Liabilities: :
Accrued expenses
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits $ 1,251,746 129,740 1,381,486
Schedule of Changes in Net Position
Morris
Town Volunteer Fire
Retirement Department
Plan Plan Total
Additions:
Contributions:
Employer $ 166,150 18,950 185,100
Total $ 166,150 18,950 185,100
Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of
investments $ (41,427) (4,487) (45,914)
interest and dividends 65,434 7,085 72,499
Total $ 24,007 2,578 26,585
Deductions:
Administrative costs $ 4712 4,035 8,747
Benefits 84,432 9,243 93,675
89,144 13,278 102,422
Net increase $ 101,013 8,250 109,263
Net position at beginning of year 1,166,655 121,490 1,288,145
Net position at end of year $ 1,267,668 129,740 1,397,408
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Pension expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $156,461 and

$24,815 for the Town Plan and Fire Department Plan, respectively.

MVFD
Town Plan Plan
Deferred Deferred
Outfiows of Outflows of
Resources Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 124,693 124,693
Changes of assumptions 12,761 22,388 35,149
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 63,766 9,927 73,693
Total $ 201,220 32,315 233,535
MVFD
Town Plan Plan
Deferred Deferred
Inflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience 3 - 35,525 35,625
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments - -
Total $ - 35,525 35,525

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows:

Town MVFD
Retirement Retirement
Year Ended June 30, Plan Plan Total

2021 $ 46,102 5125 51,227
2022 47,121 4,671 51,792
2023 33,007 2,377 35,384
2024 28,403 1,926 30,329
2025 15,986 1,043 17,029
Thereafter 30,601 (18,352) 12,249

Total § 201,220 (3,210) 198,010
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT SCHEDULE 1
GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Actual Variance With
Amounts - Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive /
Original Final Basis {Negative)
Property taxes:
Current year's levy 8,775,747 8,812,185 8,772,672 (39,513)
Prior year's levy 85,000 85,000 145,248 60,248
- Interest and penalties 45,100 25,100 47 627 22,527
Total property taxes 8,905,847 8,922,285 8,965,547 43,262
Intergovernmental:
State grants for education 103,296 103,296 111,991 8,695
Other state grants 50,454 50,454 52,089 1,635
Total intergovernmental 153,750 153,750 164,080 10,330
Charges for services:
Civil division ' 60,750 60,750 76,242 15,492
Charges for services 35,700 35,700 59,549 23,849
Other general government 16,835 16,835 27,489 10,654
Total charges for services 113,285 113,285 163,280 49,995
Investment income 27,000 27,000 36,528 9,528
Other revenues 30,000 30,000 16,829 (13,171)
Total revenue & other financing sources $ 9,229,882 9,246,320 0,346,264 99,944
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT SCHEDULE 2
Page 1 of 2
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -
BUDGETARY BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Actual Variance With
Amounts - Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive /
Original Final Basis (Negative)
General government:
Board of Finance $ 24,750 24,750 21,016 3,734
Board of Appeals - legal 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Planning and zoning . . 37,905 43,138 30,855 12,283
Tax Collector 34,360 35,485 34,501 984
Treasurer 85,409 93,107 90,636 2,471
Inland wetland 8,020 8,020 1,422 6,598
Zoning Appeals Board 10,820 10,820 8,698 2,122
Town Clerk 97,367 102,100 09,346 2,754
Assessor 66,215 67,412 60,711 8,701
Insurance 80,000 80,000 77,808 2,192
Selectman - miscellaneous 69,022 97,405 96,132 1,273
Civil Division ’ ) 71,073 - 71,073 67,982 3,091
Building Inspector 38,860 40,835 40,797 38
Other general government 388,527 380,553 354,930 35,623
Total general government $ 1,013,328 1,065,698 984,834 80,864
Public safety:
Fire Department $ 112,230 112,534 101,484 11,050
Board of Selectmen - public safety 13,500 13,500 7,399 6,101
Fire Marshal 292,960 292,960 289,922 3,038
Dog Warden 20,394 20,394 163 20,231
Total public safety $ 439,084 439,388 398,968 40,420
Public works:
Highway Department $ 630,316 639,705 619,049 20,656
LoCIP ] ) 30,000 ] 30,000 26,049 3,951
Transfer Station 265,330 267,134 253,991 13,143
Total public works $ 925,646 936,839 899,089 37,750
Health and welfare:
Board of Health $ 15,828 15,828 14,828 1,000
Morris Board of Health 700 700 291 409
Total health and welfare $ 16,528 16,528 15,119 1,409
Culture and recreation:
Beach and recreation $ 44,755 47,370 40,534 6,836
Library 104,960 106,406 103,945 2,461
Community Hall 54,985 54,985 52,704 2,281
Senior Center 88,766 91,580 90,884 696
Total culture and recreation $ 293,466 300,341 288,067 12,274
Education:
Board of Education $ 5,992,880 5,992,880 5,975,180 17,700
Total education $ 5,992,880 5,992,880 5,875,180 17,700
(Continued)
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT SCHEDULE 2
Page 2 of 2
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -
BUDGETARY BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Actual Variance With
Amounts - Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive /
Original Final Basis (Negative)
Other:
Contingency % 100,000 . 29,258 29,258
Economic development 500 500 500
Bantam Lake Authority 50 50 50
Sandy Beach Commission 8,300 8,300 8,300 -
Pension Commission 185,100 185,100 185,100 -
Bantam Lake weed control 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Total other 3 318,950 248,208 218,400 29,808
Gther financing uses:
Capital imprévements ' $ 230,000 - 230,000 230,000 -
Total debt service $ 230,000 230,000 230,000 -
220,225

Total encumbrances and financial uses $ 9,229,882 9,229,882 9,009,657
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT SCHEDULE 5

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Town Fire
Employee's Department Total
Pian Plan Trust
Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 118 4,194 4,312
Investments at fair value 1,267,550 125,546 1,393,096
Total assets . . $ 1,267,668 129,740 1,397,408
Liabilities:
Accured expenses $ -
Net position:
Held in trust for specific purposes $ 1,267,668 129,740 1,397,408
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT SCHEDULE 6
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Town Volunteer
Employees' Fire Total
Plan Department Trust
Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds
Additions:
Contributions ‘ 166,150 18,950 185,100
Total contributions 166,150 18,950 185,100
Investment earnings:
Net increase (decrease) in fair value (41,427) (4,487) {45,914)
Interest and dividends 65,449 7,074 72,523
Less: investment expense (15) (9) {24)
Total investment earnings 24 007 2,578 26,585
Deductions: - .
Administrative 4712 4,035 8,747
Benefits 84,432 9,243 93,675
Total deductions 89,144 13,278 102,422
Change in net position 101,013 8,250 109,263
Net position - beginning 1,166,655 121,490 1,288,145
Net position - ending 1,267,668 129,740 1,397,408
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BY PROJECT

CAPITAL & NONRECURRING FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Restricted fund balance:
Smokey Hollow - highway planning
Fire Department restroom STEAP grant
Total restricted fund balance

Committed fund balance:
Energy grant
Beach and rec. - cabin maintenance
Bonding
Conservations commission fundraising
Fire Department - gear
Fire Department - oil fank
Fire Department - radios and pagers
Fire Department - replacement doors
Fire Engine #5 upgrade
First Selectman - boiler replacement
First Seleciman - oil tank
Highway - E. Shore Road culverts
Highway tractor
Revaluation
Selectman - fire pond
Selectman - fire pond dredging
Selectman - maintenance shed
Selectman - Town Hall repairs
Tax Collector - fire proof safe
Todd Hill Road replace pipes
Transfer Station concrete wall replacement
Fire Department - air packs .
Fire Department - exterior steps
Fire Depariment - Fire Engine #3 replacement
Smokey Hollow reclaim and pave
Smokey Hollow fence
Highway - dump truck tandem refurb
Highway - dump truck
Highway amp - add basins
Highway building repairs
Senior side walks
Transfer Station - chipseal garage and brush
Town Clerk upgrade
Total committed fund balance

Assigned fund balance:
Senior Center funds
Unspecified projects
Total assigned fund balance
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Beginning
Fund
Balance

Current
Year Transfer
Appropriations In (Out)

$

101,947
(43,472)

$

58,475

1,560
10,000
1,019

49
697

20
9,591

200,000

56,643
576
10,000
6,000
29,325
389

(3)
462
65,000

120,000
5,050

4,800
75,164

4,000
10,000

65,000
30,000
150,000

45,000
108,000

10,000

610,342

408,000 -

183
179,782

(408,000) 230,000

179,965

(408,000) 230,000




SCHEDULE 7

Eliminating
Current Ended Deficit Reported
Other Total Year Fund Balances Fund
Revenues Available Expenditures Balance GASB 54 Balance

1,518,658 1,620,605 (1,498,721) 121,884 121,884
134,224 90,752 (93,198) (2,446) 2,448 -
1,652,882 1,711,357 (1,591,919) 119,438 2,446 121,884
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
1,560 1,560 1,560
10,000 10,000 10,000
1,019 1,019 1,019
49 49 49
697 (695) 2 2
20 20 20
9,591 9,591 9,591
200,000 (129,631) 70,369 70,369
56,643 (2,500) 54,143 54,143
576 576 576
10,000 10,000 10,000
6,000 6,000 6,000
29,325 (20,465) 8,860 8,860
389 389 389
3) (3) 3 -
462 462 462
130,000 (115,603) 14,397 14,397
30,000 (16,400) 13,600 13,600
150,000 (150,000) - -
120,000 (16,518) 103,483 103,483
5,050 5,050 5,050
45,000 (43,250) 1,750 1,750
108,000 (96,912) 11,088 11,088
4,800 (2,653) 2,147 2,147
75,164 (11,905) 63,259 63,259
10,000 (8,700) 1,300 1,300
4,000 4,000 4,000
10,000 10,000 10,000
1,000 1,019,342 (615,231) 404,111 3 404,114
183 183 183
11,225 13,007 13,007 (2,446) 10,561
11,225 13,180 - 13,190 (2,446) 10,744
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED, COLLECTED AND OUTSTANDING

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Uncollected
Balance & Lawful Corrections Transfers o Balance
Grand New Levy (Recoveries From) to be

List Year July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases Suspense Collected
2003 $ - -
2004 - -
2005 - -
2006 1,087 (169) 918
2007 645 (232) 413.
2008 2,140 (805) 1,335
2009 2,654 (990) 1,664
2010 2,207 {851) 1,356
2011 4,183 (73) 4,110
2012 1,102 5) 1,097
2013 1,968 (1,268) 700
2014 9,483 (557) (237) 8,689
2015 19,950 41 (673) (346) 18,972
2016 40,888 608 (1,893) (1,922) 37,681
2017 109,594 6,250 (12,425) (221) 103,198
Total $ 195,901 6,899 (15,553) (7,114) 180,133
2018 9,008,874 44,280 {45,965) - 9,007,189
Total $ 9,204,775 51,179 {61,518) (7,114) 9,187,322
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SCHEDULE 8

Collections Uncoliected
Lien Balance

Taxes Interest Fees Total June 30, 2020
- 918
- 413
- 1,335
273 444 110 827 1,391
104 152 19 275 1,252
46 59 17 122 4,064
- 1,097
- 700
1,052 3,453 148 4,653 7,637
4,605 1,965 241 6,811 14,367
18,624 5,627 250 - 24,501 - 19,057
64,703 13,214 962 78,879 38,495
89,407 24,914 1,747 116,068 90,726
8,882,299 58,130 15 8,940,444 124,890
8,971,706 83,044 1,762 9,056,512 215,616
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Debt limitation:
2 1/4 times base
4 1/2 times base
3 3/4 times base
3 1/4 times base
3 times base
7 times base

Total debt limitation
Indebtedness:
Bonds payable
Bonds authorized and unissued
Total indebtedness
Less: school construction grants receivable

Total indebtedness of the Town

Debt limitation in excess of outstanding and
authorized debt
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$

General
Purpose

20,377,152

20,377,152

20,377,152



SCHEDULE ¢

Total tax collections (including interest and lien fees)

for the year ended June 30, 2020 $ 9,056,512
Reimbursement for revenue loss on:
Elderly Tax Relief - Freeze -
Base 9,056,512
Urban Pension Total
Schools Sewers Renewal Bonding Debt
40,754,304
33,961,920
29,433,664 .
27,169,536
63,395,584
40,754,304 33,961,920 29,433,664 27,169,536 63,395,584
40,754,304 33,961,920 29,433,664 27,169,536 63,395,584
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Susan J. Jeanfavre
Assistant Town Clerk
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C LE R M O NT Clermont & Associates, LLC

37 Waterbury Road
ACCOUNTANTS = ADVISORS Prospect CT 06712

Main: 203-758-6658
Fax: 203-758-6758

clermontaccounting.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Board of Finance
Town of Morris, Connecticut
Morris, Connecticut 06763

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town.of Morris, Connecticut, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town of Morris, Connecticut's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 27,2020

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of
Morris, Connecticut's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Morris, Connecticut's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that way have not identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s infernal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of
Morris, Connecticut’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

CLERMONT & ASSOCIATES, LLC
Prospect, Connecticut

%w o/fescecnts, i

October 27, 2020



C LE R M O N T Clermont & Associates, LLC

37 Waterbury Road
ACCOUNTANTS « ADVISORS Prospect CT 06712

Main: 203-758-6658
Fax: 203-758-6758

clermontaccounting.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Morris, Connecticut
Morris, Connecticut 06763

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Town of Morris, Connecticut's major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2020. The Town of Morris, Connecticut’'s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town of Motris,
Connecticut's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Morris, Connecticut’'s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town
of Morris, Connecticut’'s compliance.



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Town of Morris, Connecticut, complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town of Morris, Connecticut, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Town of Morris,
Connecticut’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform
Guidance '

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Morris,
Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise of the Town of Morris, Connecticut's basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2020, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

CLERMONT & ASSOCIATES, LLC
Prospect, Connecticut

%M‘ szﬁé'so&wr@/ cee

October 27, 2020



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

Federal Pass-Through Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Number/ through to
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Project Number Expenditures Subrecipient
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through the State Department of Housing:
Small Cities Program 10.553 12060-DOH46930-20730 $ 115,251
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through the State Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 12062-DOT57191-22108 $ 1,348,721

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See Noles to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

3 1,463,972 -




TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year ended June 30, 2020

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”)
includes the federal award activity of the Town of Morris under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents
“only a selected portion of operations of the Town of Morris, Connecticut, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash
flows of the Town of Morris, Conneclicut.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform
Guidance and/or OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal
Governments wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or
credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in
prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required fo
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule? yes X no

identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $_750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SECTION Hl - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
No findings were reported.
SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST

No findings were reported.



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2020

The Town had no findings reported in the prior years' audit that are required to be
reported in this schedule.
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C LE R M O NT Clermont & Associates, LLC

37 Waterbury Road
ACCOUNTANTS e ADVISORS Prospect CT 06712

Main: 203-758-6658
Fax: 203-758-6758

clermontaccounting.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM; REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE
SINGLE AUDIT ACT

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Finance
Town of Morris, Connecticut
Morris, Connecticut 06763

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Town of Morris, Connecticut's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements describped in the Office of Policy and Management's
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Town of Morris, Connecticut's major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.
The Town of Morris, Connecticut’s major state programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town of Morris,
Connecticut's major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Single Audit Act
(C.G.S. Sections 4-230 to 4-236). Those standards and the State Single Audit Act
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
the Town of Morris, Connecticut’'s compliance.

11



Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the Town of Morris, Connecticut, complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Town of Morris, Connecticut, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the Town of Morris, Connecticut’'s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State
Single Audit Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal conirol over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section -and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of the State Single Audit Act. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

12



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by the
State Single Audit Act

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Morris, Connecticut as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Morris,
Connecticut's basic financial statements. We have issued our report thereon dated
October 27, 2020, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Town of Morris, Connecticut’s basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State Single Audit Act, and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used {o prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
cerfain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted .in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state financial
assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

CLERMONT & ASSOCIATES, LLC
Prospect, Connecticut

%M 9/]15‘90&&-*@/ e

October 27, 2020
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TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

State Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

State Grant Program
Core-CT Number

Expenditures

Passed
through to
Subrecipient

Office of Policy and Management:
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) on State Owned Property
Reimbursement of Property Taxes Disability Exemption
Property Tax Relief for Veterans
Municipal Purpose and Projects Grant
Local Capital Improvements Programs
Total Office of Policy and Management

Department of Economic and Community Development:
Small Town Economic Assistance Program

Connecticut State Library:
Historic Preservation Grant
Connecticard Program
Total Connecticut State Library

Department of Transportation:
Small Town Economic Assistance Program
Town Road Aid Grant STO
Total Department of Transportation

Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Before Exempt Programs

Exempt Programs
Office of Policy and Management:
Mashantucket Pequot/Mohegan Fund
Department of Education:
Educational Cost Sharing

Total Exempt Programs

Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance

11000-OPM20600-17004
11000-OPM20600-17011
11000-OPM20600-17024
11000-OPM20600-43587
11000-OPM20600-40254

12052-ECD46260-42411

11000-CLS66051-17010

12060-DOT46930-20730
12052-DOT57131-43455

12009-OPM20600-17005

11000-SDE64370-17041

$

11,872
61
1,171
3,528
26,049

42,681

134,224

5,500
282

5,782

150,000
177,930

327,930

510,617

5,059

111,991

117,050

827,667




TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance includes state
grant activity of the Town of Morris, Connecticut under programs of the State of
Connecticut for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Various departments and agencies
of the State of Connecticut have provided financial assistance through grants and other
authorizations in accordance with the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut.
These financial assistance programs fund several programs mcludmg education, public
‘safety and general government services.

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Morris, Connecticut conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to
governments.

The information in the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance is
presented based upon regulations established by the State of Connecticut, Office
of Policy and Management.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements contained in the Town’s annual audit report are
prepared on the modified accrual basis. The following is a summary of such
basis:

Revenues are recoghized when earned and available. Certain grants are
recognized based on grant award since they are considered entitlement
grants; other grants, such as grants that are dependent upon expenditure
factor for determining eligibility, recognize grant revenue to the extent of
expenditures.

Expenditures are recorded when the related liability is incurred.
Encumbrances are reflected as a reserve against fund balance and
accordingly are not reflected as expenditures.

The Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, contained in this
report, is prepared based on regulations established by the State of
Connecticut Office of Policy and Management. In accordance with Section 4-
236-22 of the Regulations to the State Single Audit Act, certain grants are not
dependent on expenditure activity, and accordingly, are considered to be
expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These grant program receipts are
reflected in the expenditures column of the Schedule of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance.

15



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: :
Material weakness(es) identified? yes

X__ho
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? ves X___none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted? yes X__no
State Financial Assistance
Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X__ho
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X___none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 4-236-24 of the

X__nho

Regulations to the State Single Audit Act? yes

16



TOWN OF MORRIS, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit:

Expenditures

State Grantor and Program State Core — CT Number

Department of Transportation:
Town Road Aid 12052-DOT57131-43455 $
Small Town Economic Assistance Prog. 12060-DOT46930-20730
Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and type B programs $ 200,000

Il. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

150,000
177,930

e We issued reports, datéd October 27, 2020'on internal control ovér financial
reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial

statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

e Our report on compliance indicated no reportable instances of noncompliance.

e Our report on internal control over financial reporting indicated no significant

deficiencies or material weaknesses.

lll. STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No findings or questioned costs are reported relating to State Financial Assistance

Programs.

17



Date: 12/02/2020 Statement of Actual & Estimated Revenue User: RICK
TOWN OF MORRIS
%W For Period Ending 12/31/2020
= Selecting on FUND from 01 to 01

ACCOUNT ESTIMATED MONTH-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE UNREALIZED ACTUAL YTD

DESCRIPTION REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE % REALIZED
01-4000-400-0

*RAISED FROM TAXATION 8,365,361.00 4,614,070.08 3,751,290.92 55.16
01-4000-401-0

TAX REFUNDS 6,000.00- 5,160.86- 839.14- 86.01
01-4000-402-0

CURRENT YEAR INTEREST 25,000.00 1,023.18 23,976.82 4.09
01-4000-406-0

BACK TAXES 75,000.00 59,838.75 15,161.25 79.79
01-4000-407-0

BACK INTEREST 20,000.00 12,037.33 7,962.67 60.19
01-4000-408-0

LIENS 400.00 96.00 304.00 24.00
01-4000-409-0

FEES 6.00 © 6.00-
01-4100-410-0

EDUCATION EQUALIZATION 109,929.00 27,482.00 82,447.00 25.00
01-4100-425-0

STATE OWNED PROPERTY 11,872.00 11,872.00 100.00
01-4100-428-0

TELE ACCESS LINE GRANT 4,589.00 4,589.00
01-4100-430-0

COURT FINES 200.00 80.00 12000 40.00
01-4100-434-0

PEQUOT FUNDS 5,059.00 5,059.00
01-4100-436-0

MISC FED/STATE GRANTS 3,528.00 3,528.00
01-4100-437-0

LOCIP REMBURSEMENT GRANT 21,577.00 21,577.00
01-4100-440-0

CONNECTICARD REVENUE 250.00 250.00
01-4300-440-0

INT - STIF FUND 4,700.00 4.43 4,695.57 0.09
01-4300-442-0

INT - CHECKING FUNDS 25,000.00 776.94 24,223.06 3.1
01-4300-445-0

INTEREST EARNED - TAX COLLECTOR 2,000.00 525.45 1,474.55 26.27
01-4500-447-0 A .

LEASE INCOME FROM TOWN PROPER 3,000.00 3,000.00
01-4500-452-0

BUILDING INSPECT FEES 40,000.00 25,639.65 14,360.35 64.10
01-4500-455-0

LICENSES AND PERMITS 600.00 1,200.00 600.00- 200.00
01-4500-456-0

INSURANCE EQUITY DISTRIBUTION 4,000.00 1,724.00 2,276.00 43.10
01-4500-45A-0 .

BLDG INSPECT SPEC FUND 249.05 249.05-
01-4500-462-0

REIM B & R PROG" 8,000.00 1,275.00 6,725.00 15.94
01-4500-463-0

B & R RENTAL & FIELD USE 2,000.00 525.00 1,475.00 26.25
01-4500-463-A

REIMB PROG & MISC 5,000.00 6,000.00
01-4500-463-B

MORRIS TOWN BEACH PARKING FEE 2,200.00 2,245.00 45.00- 102.05
01-4500-466-0

REIM SR CENTER EXP 600.00 410.00 180.00 68.33
01-4500-468-0

ZONING BD OF APPEALS 240.00 '240.00
01-4500-469-0

ZONING BD FEES 200.00 865.00 665.00- 432.50
01-4500-472-0

WETLANDS APPLICATIONS 1,500.00 800.00 600.00 60.00



vate. 12/uareuay Statement of Actual & Estimated Revenue user. raun
TOWN OF MORRIS
For Period Ending 12/31/2020
Selecting on FUND from 01 to 01

AGCOUNT ESTIMATED MONTH-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE UNREALIZED ~ ACTUAL YTD

DESCRIPTION REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE % REALIZED
01-4500-473-0

SENIOR CENTER RENTAL 75.00 75.00
01-4500-479-0

SALE OF SCRAP - TOWN GARAGE 500.00 120.00 380.00 24.00
01-4501-482-0

COMMUNITY HALL 500.00 500.00
01-4501-483-0

COPIER 1,500.00 79.25 1,420.75 5.28
01-4501-484-0

VITAL STATISTICS - TOWN 1,500.00 1,804.00 304.00- 120.27
01-4501-486-0

RECORDING 7,000.00 5,195.00 1,805.00 74.21
01-4501-487-0

MISCELLANEOUS 50.00 4,561.00 4,511.00- 9122.00
01-4501-488-0

REAL ESTATE CONVEYANCE 25,000.00 36,167.18 11,167.18- 144 .67
01-4501-482-0

DOGS - TOWN FEE 50.00 5.00 15.00- 130.00
01-4501-493-0

DOGS - ALTERED 100.00 51.00 489.00 51.00
01-4501-494-0

DOGS - SURCHARGE - UNALTERED 50.00 113.00 63.00- 226.00
01-4501-495-0

SPORTSMEN'S LICENSES 50.00 22.00 28.00 44.00
01-4502-473-0

ZONING SITE PLAN 140.00 140.00-
01-4502-474-0

ZONING BD SURCHARGES 138.00 138.00-
01-4502-477-0

INLAND WETLND SURCHGE 76.00 76.00-
01-4502-485-0

VITAL STATISTICS - STATE 34.00- 34.00
01-4502-493-0

DOGS - STATE - UNALTERED (eff. 10/ 366.00 366.00-
01-4502-494-0

DOGS - STATE SURCHARGE - UNALTE 48.00 48.00-
01-4502-495-0 ) )

DOGS - REPLACEMENT TAG 4.50 4.50-
01-4502-496-0

DOGS - OUT OF TOWN REGISTRATIO 132.00 132.00-
01-4502-497-0

DOGS - PENALTY 75.00 110.00 35.00- 146.67
01-4504-458-0 .

TRANSFER STATION - RECYCLE FEE 4,500.00 2,514.00 1,986.00 55.87
01-4504-459-0

LANDFILL - METAL RECYL 2,700.00 2,037.65 662.35 75.47
01-4504-460-0

TRANSFER STATION DEMO 15,000.00 10,681.00 4,319.00 71.24

Report Totals 8,795,455.00 4,822,074.58 3,973,380.42 54.82



-6£°01 6£°0L $3NddNS 301440 e
0-926-0095-10

) {zogy - ) zogy

-00°ve 00°0 00'¥¢ 1 10y sjejo)

-00'¥¢ 00'vE FLVLS - SOLLSLLYLS VLA
0-G8%-Z0G¥-10

(ooov - ) coor

10'98~ -98'081'11 00°0 98°091's -00°000'9 1 1o} sjejo)

-10°98 -98°094 't 98°091's -00'000'9 SANNLAY XYL
0-10v-000¥-10

(otzi-)otzs

~LZpER'9L 600 LZyeg'sl : Jo} siejol

-leves'ol 12'¥£8'9L 18YAIZOTY SIXV.L NO LSIHILINI
0-000-0421-40

{oozi - ) 0021

-00°052 00°0 007052 140} SjejoL

-00°05¢ 00°052 ISNIAXT Aivdadd
0-000-002}-10

(0000 - ) 0000

-6LEE6'VBRT 00°0 61°€£6'v88'T 1104 Sjel0 L

-00'202'9 00'202'9 Hd - GONYHENNONT G3AYISTY
0-204-0000-10

-16°29v'88 16°/91'88 TOYLNOD FONYHENNONI
0-00£-0000-10

-G9'E£E0'GE GOCE0'GE JONVHNSNI TYOIGEIN - AYdOD
: 0-922-0000-10

-00°052' 00°052°¢ SASNIAX3 GaNYO0Y
0-102-0000-10

-00°9.Y'6E2 00'9.v'6EC ATGYAIZO3Y XYL ALHId0Ud
0-021-0000-10

C-LY'E68°0L L¥'€69'0L SANNS dO-NON (0L NOod4d 3na
0-201-0000-10

-00°0§1 00°05} OILVLS YIASNVYL - HSVD ALL3d
0-960-0000-10

-€L'Z60'S £4°260'G HHITO NMOL - HSVYD
0-650-0000-10

-91'901L'L 919014 HOLOITIOO XVL-HSVYD
0-¥50-0000-10

SLELerLL Lylov'iy LNNOOOV IS
0-€50-0000-10

-Z2'000'6Z¥'2 22°000'szv'Z HOLIT LS - LOOV ¥3dO
0-150-0000-10

aasn JONYIVE SIONVHEWNONT wm_w%%&mwﬁwwﬁ SIUNLIANIEXT SANLIANTdXT SNOILYIYdOYHddY NOILJIMOS3A LINNODOY
IN3OYId  OF™IAGWNONINN ONIONVLSLNO HYIA HONd FLVO-0L-HVIA 3LVA-OL-HINOW ANNODOY

10 01 10 woy aNN4 uo Buposieg
020Z/1€/2L Buipug poliad 104

| :oBey ] mEmOE 40 2>>O.,r , WNVBY.CL:8 Bl

Ao esn

wgoum:ao&a( ,w ,m,mo:mBE:ocm_ nmm::%,_r_m,%_,,x.m_ %o EuE&mww,

020z/z0/eL Bied



ZL8ZTLS -Z6TYY'PL6T 00°0 26°265'696'C -00°058'v sjejo} poday
-)0
Z2L1°822°19 -26°ThY' VL6 000 26°265'696°2 -00°058'v 140} 8301
(ro308dsu) Buipiing) 9204
-00°020°) 000 00°0L0°L 1 40§ sjejO Y,
-00°020't 00'0L0'4 JLNdWOD HOLOIJdSNI ONIATING
0-2£6-9204-L0
{l1eH Aununuod) 8002
-81'66 000 8166 1104 sE30L
-LEET ez SHIVAIHH O
0-v8%-900.-10
-18'64 19°GL S3MddNS H D
0-725-9004-10
(Buiuoz pue Butuueid) 0065
vell 11’68 000 1,68 00°0 1 doj spgjol
6Ll -Li6e 1268 0008 S3ddNS Z8d
0-725-0066-10
(uoijeaiday pue yoeag) 0095
86°104 SLIVE 000 Lz 00°00L'% : 40§ SjEI0 )
60'10L  -126 12658 00058 NOILVLINYS 428
0-¥29-0095-10
$8°00L  -LLE L1252 00052 S14VHD ® SLuvY ¥ed
0-029-0095-10
aasn  FONVIva STONVHEINNONS STONIIHNIONT  s3unLioNadxa STUNLIONIAXS  SNOLLVINOYdAY NOILIMOS3T INNOJDY
INZO¥Id  QFUIBNNONINN ONIONYLSLNO UVYIA HORd ILVA-OL-UVIA 2IVG-OL-HINOW LNNODOVY
10 0} 10 woi gNN4 uo Buposies
0202/1€/Z1 Buipug pousad Jo4
. SIHHOW 40 NMOL ) em -
Z:ebed : PR e WY6BY:GL6 BWlL

HOId 488N

wcosm:aok&(;w .mmocmBE:ocm awmka_ncwmxm. wo EwEﬂﬂw |

0z0z/20/21 =Ed



0-026-00¥5-10

00°GLV'L 00°6LP L UO13EN4 - Qd
0-G15-00PS-10

0i'8¢ 58°096'¢ G1'8ev'e 00'66€'9 Wu310 - ad
L-€06-00¥S-L0

(sjeaddy Juawissassy Jo pg) 00€S

007000} 00'0 00°000° - tdoysiejol

00°000°} 00°000't S3AA VoA - vvE
0-¥£9-00£6-10

(asueuld o pd) 0025

1£°69 00°0S2°L 00°0 00°00§°L1 00°052°62 t 40} Sjej0L

00061 00°061 OLLON w931 - 4049
0-¥£5-0025-10

GG'6L 00°008'y 00°00S'L4 0000022 Liany - 404
0-2£5-00¢5-10

00008 00°00S 180434 TYNNNY - 408
. 0-0£6-0026-10

00'002 00'002 S3IddNS - 408
0-$25-0025-10

0000v'2 00°00¥'2 Hea10 - 404
1-205-0024-10

(uoneonp3a) ooLs

158y 00°22¥'681°C 000 00°152'829'C 00°¥89°LLY'S 1104 sjejo )

1G8¥% 00°42v'684°C 00°/52'828' 00'989'LIv'S NOLLYONA3
0-015-00156-10

(snosuejasin) 0008

5988 0070022 000 00°006'295 -00°009°0¥9 : 10} sjgjo1

00°001 00°000'se 00°000'62 TOHLNOD QIIM VT NVYLINVE
0-666-0006-10

00005 00°009 INGOTINAIA DINONODS SIHHONW
0-,66-0006-10

00°001 00061991 00°061'991 00 NOISN3d SIHHON 40 NMOL
. 0-696-0006-10

00°00L 00°05¥'81 00'0s¥'8L NOILLLIAWOD NOISNId A4AN
) 0-$56-0008-10

0000} 00°00¢'8 00°00t'8 NOISSIANOO HOVYIY AONYS
’ 0-066-000S-10

0005122 00°064°22 AONIONILNOD
0-6¥6-000%-10

00°09 00°08 ALKOHLNY 3XYT WVINYE
0-0v6-0006-10

00°001 00°000'05¢ 00'000'06¢ ONIEHNOEY NON TVLidvO
0-606-0006-10

aasn 30ONVYIvE SIONVHEWNONT Mww%%%pmwﬁﬁwﬁ SIUNLIGNIdXT SHUNLIANIIX3 SNOILVIMJOYddY NOILJIMOSHAQ LNNODOY
AINFOHAd  GIYIGWNONINN ONIANYLSLNO HYIA MO JIVQ-01-HVIA JLYQ-OL-HLINOW LNNOJOY

1:abed

DI 98N

L0 01 L0 woy aNN4 uo Buiosies
020z/1€/2) Buipug potad 404

SIHHONW 40 NMOL

suopeLdoiddy ' seoUBIqIINOUT ‘salnypuadxd Jo JueWSIelS

WYBLpL:6 BWwil
0zoz/zo/es #ed



007005 00°005 1 NOLLYONAAE NOLLNIAZHd -W 4
0-¥26-0066-10
29l 25'688°6 s yLL'e 00°000°C1 NOILO3dSNI - 4
1-L0G-0065-10
(1deq ait) 00ps
V6tV 10°L22°E9 00°959°'¢ L 000 66°206'GE 00°98.°ZL) : 104 S{ejo L
19’98 09°cys op'esy'e 00°000'y JLVAONYIN YHSO - 4d
0-008-00v5-10
8€'98 00'zsy'e 00'8¥5'G1 0070008} AONVHNSNI - a4
0-¥Z.-009G-10
26°29 00°208 00'868'L 00006 ddNS TYIIQIW AONIOH3ING - ad
0-009-00v4-10
00°004 00'9¢9'¢ 00°vPe 00°000't S1LILVd3H ® STVYOISAHd - G4
. 0-869-00¥G-10
00°009 00°00S ANIWLINEOAY - a4
0-¥85-00¥5-10
00t 00°GEE'S 00°g9l 00°006'S Hv3ao -ad
0-265-00¥5-10
00°05 00°000'2 000002 00°000't ONINIVHL - a4
0-065-00%5-10
8z'0¢ 67169 §1°20¢ 00000 SYO ININGINDIAMONYL - A4
0-986-00¥5-10
0L'GL 692012 15'Z6¢ 00'006°2 T3S3AUA HONHL - ad
. 0-¥86-00¥G-10
00°008'L 00°008'1 AS0H - a4
0-28G-00¥G-10
€914 61°696 16°0e¥'L 00°000'2 ININGINDE MIN - A4
0-085-00¥5-10
G6'6¢C GZ'LGeL') GL8YL 00005'2 SHIADVY ANY SOIavy - G4
0-946-00¥5-10
60°LE LL'98L'6L 00°000'0} £8°ELE 00°005'0¢ LNIVIN MONWL - Qd
0-¥86-009G-10
19°62 vo'69Y'y 9¢°0es'L 00°000'9 NIV ONIGTING - a4
. 0-296-00¥5-10
$¥9'9€ 16'442'2 £p'zee't 00°008'c 1NIVA SS300V - a4
0-096-00v6-10
1569 |FAR VA4 62'8.0'1 00°056°L S3AddNS 301440 - A4
0-929-00%6-10
8z'6l §G'069'G Syepe’l 000002 ALIDIHLOINI -4
0-2249-00v5-10
=l 08'650'L ocess 00zig'l LINYILNI -G
_ 0-125-00v5-10
¥6'8¢ yoLLL 9¢'¢L 000562 ANOHJZT3L - ad
a3sn IONYIVE SFONVHEWNONT www%%,w_m\%w?_w STUNLIANTdXT SIUNLIANIDX3 SNOLLVIHEONddY NOILAI®OSZA LNAODOY
AN3OHId  QIYISWNONINN ONIONVLSLNG HY3A HOd 31VQ-OL-HYIA J1YA-OL-HLNOW INNOOOY

Mo Hesn

z.abed

10 0} 10 Wiol ANN uo Buosiag
0202/1e/2} Buipuz poLied Jod
SdHoN o NMOL

suonendolddy g SeoUBIqUINOUT 'SainpuadXT JO JUsWS}elS

NVBLPL:6 Bl
0coe/eo/el @.ed



L-105-0045-10
{uoyealoay pue yoeag) 0099

£Z'SE 69°€8.'9Z 00'0 L£°995'FL 00°088° LY 1 Joj s|B10 ],

£EYT 00°222 00€L 00°00¢ ONILSIL ¥ILYM U8
0-668-0095-10

GP'6G 2550y 8y v6S 00000} JHOLINOW ALIHNOIS/NGY IV U5E
‘ 0-799-0095-10

Sty £E°CLG 1992 00'009 OSIN YNEWITY Y3
0-0¥9-0095-10

00'¥S 00°00€'2 007004 00°000'S SLHIONOD W%
, 0-G£9-0096-10

98'6Z oy 1£6'S ¥5890°'2 00°000'8 ONINYHDOUd Wee
: 0-v£9-0095-10

00041 000l SIHSYIaWAW Hed
0-829-0096-10

60°10L  -/TB 12658 00058 NOILYLINVS u%d
0-v€9-0096-10

y8°00L -Li2 L1z6e 00052 S14VHO ¥ SV ¥e8
‘ 0-029-0095-10

00082 00052 THAVHL Y98
0-209-0095-10

00°005's 00°008'G IONYNILNIVIA SHNL ueg
) 0-v95-0086-10

R 74 £8'9£4'8 21€90'2 00°00G't 1 FONVNILNIVIN ¥eg
0-295-0096-10

-6£°0} 6£°04 SAMNddNS 01440 g
0-926-0086-10

P8Py 16266 £0°208 00°008'} o103 URE
0-225-0095-10

16°6¢ glsvl ; z8'v6 00°0%¢ INOHdI 1AL YRed
. 0-025-0096-10

9e'e 11829 £g'1e 00059 (LVEH) INVdOYd W88
) 0-615-0096-10

05'¥8 00651 00°GY8 0070001 JDIAYIS ONINVITO ¥58
0-215-0095-10

€208 00°068 00°06Y'S 00°00E'Y SAHYIVS HINWNNS MBE
1-205-0095-10

(neyssen 2itd) 0055

96°G4 2G°GvE‘LL 000 8ypSLT 00°005'cl : d0§ sjEjOL

00°059 00'068 ONINIVAEL B INFNAINDT - 4
0-085-0056-10

2992 00011 00°0¥ 00°051 SAMddNS -W 4
0-925-0056-10

aasn JONVIVE STONVHEWNONT Mww%%,w_mﬁwzm SIUNLIGNIIX3 SAUNLIANIXT SNOLLYIHdOYddY NOLLJIMOSIA LNNODOV
ONIGNVLS1IND YYIA HOd ILVQ-OL-HYAA 21LYA-OL-HINOW LNNOOOY

IN3OHIAd  QIHIGWNONANN

¢.0bed

MO 188

L0 0} 10 wol GNN4 uo Bulosjes
0coz/Lefz | Buipul poted Jod
SIHUON 40 NMOL

| wcosm_aoaa«:m wmo‘cmtﬁesocm ,mo(_éwcm%m‘ JO EmEmyEw

ANVELPL6 BWlL
ozoz/zorel =ed



TN L9'PLG'0) 685ZY'L £0°000'81 AUVIVS HOLOITI0D XVL
1-005-0009-L0

(Buuoz pue Bujuueid) 0065

14N X 96'068'8¢ 00°0 POY90‘cL 00'556' LY 1 doj sjej0 L

59'c8 05°L18 06281 00°000'G 334 vHI1 2984
0-¥.9-0065-}0

156 16°Ger's 60'PLS 00°000'9 HIANNYTd NMOL 28d
0-6¥9-0066-10

0882 86°LLL 20882 00000’ HAOVIUN 28d
, 0-209-0066-10

00°008 00°'008 NOLLYDNQ3 23d
. 0-065-0066-10

00°002 00°00Z dIHSHIAWIAN Z2'8d
0-9£5-0065-10

156 88706 Z1'G6 00°000'4 JOILON w31 2%8d
0-¥£6-0066-10

ZFeLl  -LL6E 168 00°08 S3NddNS Z3d
0-¥25-0065-L0

£6'8 TAVAN 08'2h 00°054 JAOVLSOd Z2%d
_ 0-015-0065-10

00'005'} 00°008'L IVOIIID 28d
1-£06-0065-10

6162 0Z'eEy'8l 08'128'2 00'652'92 037 2%8d
1-105-0065-10

{(Kiexqiy) 0045

sLvy 16°690'29 86°08L'¢ 000 S0'68v'sy 00°042°C4) 1 10} sipjoL

00°001 050 05°'8.9'2) 00'6.¥'2L SNIdXT NOLLYINOISIB AdvHEl
0-058-0045-10

00°009 00°009 ALIAZIONOT Advydi
2-2€2-00.5-10

/88 27881 gL 00°002 IOVIUIN AdvHdl
0-209-00.5-10

676 70202 86°0€L'S 098'860'¥ 00'058'6 SIANIZVOVIN 2 SHOO0E Advdi
0-2v6-0026-10

12'¢8 05651 05064 00°056 $INA AdVEN
0-9£5-0045-10

00'8¢ Z6'6V5'} 80°056 00°005' $31ddNS Advygil
0-925-0046-10

96'%2 09281 0y'z9 00062 INOHdII3L Advea
0-026-00.6-10

G162 79°040'VE 9881071 00°680'8Y SIOVM Advdal
1-€05-0046-10

6928 Z£'6L2Z'ET 89'8/0'71 00'25¢'L€ AMYIVYS SHOLOIHIT AXYHE!

aasn A0NVIVE SIONVHEWNONT www%%&mw%wvzm SIUNLIANIIX STUNLIANTdXS SNOILVIHdONddY NOILdI¥0S3A LNNOOOY
ONIONVLSLNO HVIA HORd 31YA-0L-HYIA 31VA-OL-HLNOW LINNODOV

INIOH3Ed  G3UIWNONINN

MO 488N

.abed

L0 0} |0 Woy QNN uo Buyosiag
0z0e/1€/g) Buipuz pousd 1o
e SRIOU SO NVOL

| mco;m:aoaa,q vm,,wm,o%%#c_‘_ocm_ .wm._szn.cmmwm. u,o EmEBEm

WVBLpLG Pull
0zoz/zolel eed



69'82 00'60L'S 00'662'2 00°000'8 3S TYNOISSIH0Hd ¥I3UNSYIYL
. 0-069-0019-10

00'69 00°6¢ 00'59 00°004 Na TYNOISSIH0Hd HAUNSYIAYL
0-089-0019-10

00008 00°006 {3 % HA MNvE
0-099-0019-10

£CoF $6°19¢€'C OV'8£0'C 00°00t'y $334 ADIAHIS TI0HAYd
0-159-0019-10

£6°02 ¥2'942 STAYA ' 00°05¢ IOV HN ¥IHNSYIHL
. 0-209-0049-10

¥5°66 2Teee 811667 00'522's 1ddV Y3LNdWOD HILNSYIHL
0-2£5-0019-10

8.0 8v'y86'L Z6°'G1 00°000°2 SIMddNS YIUNSYIHL
0-926-0019-10

00°002 00°002 NOILYONQF HH310 TYOoSsid
0-615-0019-10

61'L6 0Z'9v2 08'662'2 00°000'¢ AUVIVS HIHUNSYIHL ALNG3A
1-206-0019-10

Gt 18 06°£8Z'6) 0L'8ys' L) " 00'9£8'0¢ MHITO WVOSId
L-£06-0019-10

69'/8 00'089'22 00°0ZLEL 00°00%'9¢ AYVIVS HIHNSYIHL
1-006-0019-10

(103334100 X2 1) 0009

£6'28 76'826'91 00°929°¢ 000 80'v9¢'st 00°696°G¢ : 404 sjejoL

00'004 00°00Z't 00°002't 3OVYLSOd HOLO3 110D XYL
0-2£8-0009-10

00002 00°002 IAYZS 30I1SLN0 YOL03TI00 XL
) 0-069-0009-10

0008} 00061 FOVIHA HO.LO3TI0D XVl
0-209-0009-10

00°09¢ 00°09¢ Md/NOILLYONA HOLO3TI00 XVL
0-0/§-0008-10

00'sv1 00°s¥) NQ 2 SONILIAIN HOLOITIOD XYL
0-9£6-0009-10

$0°LE 00°52¥ 00052 00629 J01LON TVOTT HOLO3TIO0 XL
0-7£5$-0009-10

00°00! 00'9L¥'2 DO'SLE'S 00'168'8 NS HIALNANOD WOL3TTIOO XVi
. 0-2€5-0009-10

L8862 €1'e5¢ 18'9¥L 00°005 $317ddNS HO.LOITI00 XV.L
0-925-0009-10

2261 gL1zL'y Z8'991'} 00'888'¢ MHITO HOL03710D XYL
1-£06-0009-10

a3sn JONVIVE STONVHANNONT www%%wmw%ooﬁ STUNLIGNIIXT STUNLIONTDX3 SNOLLYINdOYd Y NOLLAIROSAG LNNODOY
INTONAd  aIYIGNNONINN FLVA-OL-UYIA J1VG-OL-HLNOW LNNODOY

M0 488y

gabed

ONIGNVLSLINO HY3A HOd

10 01 L0 Woy GNN U0 Burosles
0z0z/1€/2) Bulpug polied Jod
SIHHON 4O NMOL

WYBL:pL6 Bl
0coe/eoict Bied



. 0-v£6-0069-10

9829 £'9/€ b9'65Y £6'€9) 00°000't SANJNS HHI10 NMOL
0-925-0059-10

5z'91 8y°9/8'L 25'e8e 0009€'2 SASNIAXI - HHITO NMOL
0-015-0059-10

0928 6L ELE'YVE 12°059'v1 00'v96'8E AHYIVS Y310 NMOL LSSY
. 1-€06-0059-10

6948 01°086'08 0622281 00°€L9'6Y AYYIVS MHITO NMOL
1-005-0059-10

{steaddy jo pg Buiuoz) govs

(IR:1 00°S52°01 00°0 00°580°Z 00°028°} 110§ stejoy

00°00€ 00°00€ S3DIANIS TYNOISSIHOUd vaz
0-069-00v9-10

1z 00°SE6'6 00'590'2 00'000'Z) $334 VO vaz
0-7/9-00v9-10

00°0LL 0001t s3Na vez
0-9£5-0099-10

00°00% 00°00¥ SIDILON TvO31 vaz
0-v€5-00V9-10

000t 0001 S3ddNS vaz
0-925-00%9-10

(spuepapyspueiul) 00£9

0£'s 10°565°L 00°0 66°vZY 000208 : 10} sigjoL

00°000'} 00°000'L AHIS TYNOISSIHOHd OTLAWGTINI
0-069-00€9-10

00°000't 00°000°L $334 WOI1 ATLWATINI
. 0-v/9-00€9-10

£e'ez 00069 00012 00008 0 NOILVAHASNOD LSIMHLHON
0-059-00€9-10

00002 00002 SIN NOILYAYISNOD GTLMWATINI
0-9£5-00€9-10

¥8'42 AR 74 8Z'624 00°05% SIDILON WOIT ATLAWATIN
0-v£6-00€9-10

1012 62722 1468 00Zly SIDINGIS HIHLO GTLWTIN
0-016-00€9-10

00°850'y 00'850'F JOVM LOIASNI OTLMWATINI
: L-£06-00€9-10

(pieog yiesH SLIOW) 0029

62'v1 00°009 00°0 00°001 00°00L 1 40} SjRI0L

6271 00'009 00004 00°004 WNA
0-¥9-0029-10

(Jainseal)l) 0019

0z’ iv 80°015'€S 00°0 26°006'LE 00°LL0°L6 { ioj s(ejo )

gasn  3ONVIvE SIONVHENNONT AN NN SN LIaNdX3 STUNLIANZAX3  SNOLLVINAOUdAY NOILJIOSIA INNODOY
INADHA  QINIGWNONAND ONIGNYLSLNO HYIA MO 1VQ-OL-HYIA ILYA-OL-HLNOW INNODOY

10 0} 1§ Wy} GNN4 uo Buioejeg ,
0z0z/Le/Z) Bulpus poued 104
g:abed - SIHHOW 40 NMOL R — WV6EL: P16 PWwIlL
|4
SO OS] m suoneudolddy ¥ seouelquinoug ‘sainiipuadxy Jo Juswielels 0202/20/2, OEa




AR . LEET SHivdad H O
k 0-¥95-9004-10
8zZ'zl LZL81'EL €LZY8'L 00°000'G1L AONVNILNIVA H D

: ) 0-294-900.-10

-18'GL 18'GL ) SATddNS H O
A 0-¥25-900£-10

2092 L0'P59'S 66'GYE'C 00°000'6 ALIDIHIOATEH O
0-225-9004710

A 18°0EY'e 61691t 00°009'c INOHJIHELHOD
0-025-9004-10

88'¢ 68'689'Z LL0LE 00°000'8 13N4HO
0-G16-9004-10

196 00°089'6 00°05¢'s 00°000'GL JOIAYZAS ONINVITOH O
: 0-216-9004-10

. {10s8858Y) OOL

1'% 24 61°£99'g¢ 00°0 18°52'0E 00°680°69 1 10§ S{RJ0)

'ze §2'el8 $2'929'0L 00°005'L L SNIdX3 HALNdWOD YOSSASSY
0-099-¥004-10

00°009 00°009 IOVI TN HOSSISSY
0-209-¥004-10

1601 §6°068 S0'601 00°000°L ST TddNS HOSSHASSY
: 0-925-$00.4-10

ag8'6¢ 08'¥59'Z1 02'/8¢'s 00°ZY0'8L AHYIVYS HOSSIASSY LNVLISISSY
: 1-206-¥002-10

69°.¢ 6l vv9'cz L8°Z08'pL R WAL WIS AHVYIVS HOSSASSY

1-10G-¥004-10
(314010 umoly) 0088

£2°6¢ 08'965°19 6°106'Y 000 82°858'V¢ 00°L5¢°10L : 4o} sjeloy,

00°06¢ 00°06¢ ALIASONOT Y310 NMOL "LSSY
2-v£4-0066-10

18'S 00°0£9 000V 00'048 INIHIANOD 'SINA MUATO NMOL
: 0-089-0059-10

00°002 00°00Z Q@ IVNOISSTH0Ud »HITO NMOL
: , 0-0/9-0059-10

00°00¥ - 00°00¥ NOLLYDIZIQOD MHITO NMOL
0-859-0069-10

007008 00°008 NOLLYAYISItd MHITO NMOL
0-959-0069-10

00°008 00°008 WHAOUDIA MHEITO NMOL
0-269-0059-10

00°00} 000 gZevtr'y Z.'168 00'0vE's HIALNAWOD ¥HFTD NMOL
0-059-0069-10

00°008 007008 SIDILON WOHIT - MH3TO NMOL

aasn 30NVIVE SHONVHEWNONI www%%wm%wwzm SIHNLIANTIXT SIUNLIANIIX3 SNOLLYIMHOYddY NOILJIHOSIA INNOOOY
ANIOHIAd  Q3YEgGNNONINN DONIGNVYLSLNG HYAA HOMd ALYG-OL-HVIA 31VJ-OL-HINOW LINNOJOV

10 0} L0 Wol aNN4 uo Buosjes
020z/1€/21 buipuzg polad 404

J:obeg SIMHOW 40 NMOL |

suofjelidolddy % ssoueiqunoug ‘sainjipuadx

WvELvLi6 Bl
gcozreo/el #ed

MOIY 4esn g jo w‘cmEEEm




3-0L9-8004-10

00°0SL 00052 SIDILON YOI NOILOTTE
€-0£9-800210

¥5'68 argLL's 26186, 0005921 SIAYYIVS NOILDTTI
v-0/9-8004-10

00°000'2 00°000'2 ONINIVYL IIAOCWT
0-¥59-8004-10

89'LE 68°168'9 Ligol’e 00°000°0} 13d0Yd NMOL 40 3ONYNILNIVIN
0-0£9-8004-10

sz°Zh 757148 ar'zzl 00°000'L IOV SO8
0-209-800.- 10

96'66 08°0 0z’ LLE'| 00218t DODHN
0-0¥G-8004-10

86°L6 0068 00626 "00°090't 1809
: 0-8€5-8002-10

84°GY 06'298 057281 00°009'L 8nd % 3na 4NOD
0-9£5-8004-10

00°000'1 00°000'} SIDILON WD 004
0-bE€5-8004L0

6L°28 91'60¢ R L INA 00°00'Z 3OV 93IM SIHHOW
8-1£5-800/-10

€148 00286 00'810'2 00°000°8 JONYNILNIVIN HIAYIS T
. V-LEG-8004-10

Ze°0b grgel'e gz'19e 00°008'¢ 140ddNS HOAL ¥ILNdINOD
0-1£5-800.-10

z8'9} LL90Y'S £7'60'L 00°005'9 $3ddNS S08
0-925-800.- 40

8Lz 00°212'¢ 00°61Z' 00°9EY'y AYVIVS NIWLOT13S
1-206-8004-10

00062 00°052 LSINOILIIOTH/ANY.LINOTS
1-£06-800.2-10

89°2€ 65°9¥9'LE LOErL'6L 0006108 INVLSISSY SALLYVHLSININGY
, 1-106-8002-10

69°L€ 8Z'692'bE 22°08.'02 00°000'65 AMYIVS NYWLDITES 18414
1-005-800410

(lreH Aunwwiod) 900.

8£'2Z 69'€ZL LY 00°0 Le1£0'21 00°552°€S 104 8jE10)

szzz 00'LLE 00'68 00°00% ONILSTL HALVMH O
0-668-9004-10

eree S ANY 95°195 00°089°L LANMIINIH D
0-068-9004-10

FAR TS SpL18 §6'¢0Z 00°520'L IDIAYIS LOVHINODI H D
0-895-9004-10

aasn JONVIVE SAONVAGWNNINTG Mﬂ.o%%%&mmﬁ.ﬂﬂzm STYNLIANIAXT SIUNLIANIEX3 SNOILLVIHGOHddY NOILJIHOS30 INNQOOY
ANIDNUAd  QIYIgGWNONINN ONIGNVYLSLNO HVIA HOHd JLVA-OL-HY3A FIVA-OL-HLNOW ANNOOOY

ADIH 88N

g:abed

10 0} 10 Woy NN4 uo Buijosjeg
0z02/L€/2) Buipuzg pouad Jod
SIYHOW 40 NMOL

suoljeldoiddy ¥ seouriquinoum ,mm_:w_‘vcmaxuwo EmEmew

NWVBL'PL6 Bull
0coc/eo/el @ed



22’89 62°18¢ 19'818 00°002'1 INOHJITIL AVMHOIH
) 0-026-2404-10

00°00v'e 00'00¥'e O AVAHDIH
0-615-2L0/-10

oL’z S6'8EL'v2 50°198'L 00°000'92 1O AONIOHUING MIWO YOy
1-608-210L-10

AVA> $6'086'G5 1 SO'vEY'VE 00°6L¥'062 SIYVIVS AVMHDIH
L~L0S-2L0L710

; (usteaH jo pieog) 0L0L

LL'v6 L LAVAX 00°0 9L°G68'VL 00°8Z8's1 1 104 sjelo )

00°00} 00000} 00°000'L NOLLYONNO: SGOOMNIZYD
. 0-22.-0L0L-10

00°009 00'009 HSid
0-689-010/-10

00°001 00005} 00°00S'L ANOHLINY 8 NVYSNS
0-889-010/-10

00052 00'052 ag HLTY3aH TvIN3W
0-989-0104-10

V66 peze 9.'66£'Z} 00'8LY'Z1 aHVYL HLTV3H 40 a8
0-989-0104-10

(JUBLILIBADS) [B18UAD) BOOL

12044 $6°860'512 0070 90°6vL'2LL -00°8¥8'28¢ : oy sjejo)

yy oy 00°499°9 00°¢ee's 00°000°Z1 1834 "aLYM 39aidaT13
0-668-8004-10

007001 00°6L1'2 00'6Ll'T (SOHTNNYHOOU FHOHD
0-£¥8-8004-10

8206 1G'¥80'68 6Y'G16'L6 00°000'181 ADNVYHNSNI 3FA0 TN
2-¥2.-8004-10

609 z0'482'¢ 86°21i2 00°006'€ MHvd IVIHOWIN -A0D N3O
. 0-089-800.-10

66'6¥ £8'29Z'4 £1'292') 00'625°2 1HN00 ILvE0Hd
0-9/9-8004-10

r4:)ra 00658’y 00yl 00°000's AINYOLLY HO8VY
0-6/9-8002-10

oLe 00°06%'6 00015 00°000'0} TASNNOD NMOL
0-v19-8004-10

00'002'} 00°00Z'} ONINIVYL HVHLSIORHE NOLLOFT
D-049-8004-10

S0'¢l gz 1e') G.'281 00°00%'} 1HOddNS ¥33LNdNOD NOLLOT 13
3-0/9-8002-10

00002 00°002 JNA B SFONIUIAINOD NOILOFTH
0-0/9-800.4-10

26'1L8 6.980'L 12°GI8'Y 00°000'9 SHMddNS NOILLO3TE

aasn AONYIVE STAONVYEINNONT www%%wwmdwwzm STUNLIANIJIXD SFUNLIANIAXT SNOILVINDOYddY NOILAIMOS3A LNNODOY
ANTOMId  QIUIFNNINANN ONIANYLSLNO HYAA HOINd ILVA-OL-HYIA AUVA-OL-HLNOW 1NNODOV

MO 488N

g:0bey m

10 0} |0 woif aNN4 uo Bunoseg
020z/Le/z) Buipug polad Jo
SIYYOW 40 NMOL

SUOREHG010dy § SeOUEIGLINOU SeINpUSGK JO WSWRTETS

WVBL'vi6 BulL
02oz/zo/el #ied



0-8€4-210.-10

188 00'882 00°ZL 00°098 NIWISENEWIZH TYIN AVMHOIX
TVELZL0LL0

00°00+ 00°004 00002 ALINZONOT AVMHOIH
22ELTL0L7L0

Seor 65019t L7'680'L 00'00£'2 LNIWLOTIV WHOLINN AVMHOIH
T0EL-2L0L710

00°829 00'829 STVOISAHA AVMHOIH
. 282L2V0L 40

00°00} 05'6EL'LL 05°092°C 00°000'0Z YIS HOVHO
084272104710

00°00F 000 86'G18'6Z LO'P8L'SL 00°000'S¥ ONIAVd
094272404710

00°195'68 00°195'68 T3S dIHD
0Z1L210L710

1962 GL'EL6') §2'9z8 000082 VHSO AVMHOIH
0-0b2-2104-L0

€968  96°0IE 00°00Z $0'688 00°006'} SNOIS 133ULS AVMHOIH
‘ 0-90£-2104710

00°000°08 00°000°0S 11vS 8 NYS
, 0-v0L-2104710

9’5l $8'269'} §1'20€ 00°000'Z S3AVY1E MOTd MONS AYMHOIH
060472404710

L9°06 25669 L6°218'E 19°286'T 00°008'2 380718 FHIL AVMHOIH
02042104710

WiE SLLLVET BLGLL'Y 99°€/8'6 00°001'4€ VNILNIVIN 8 SHIVAIH AVMHOIH
0-00£-2104710

00°004 00°004'} 00°008'} INION3 LNIWLHYIA AVMHOIH
: 0-8¥9-2104710

gv'el 882971 ziize'e 00°000°8} 13S31Q SYO AVMHOIH
085-2102-10

9Tye  se'evs §L'169 00°002"4 LNIWLINOT AYMHOIH
0-086-2104-10

6282 GEOKT'8Y L7'€90' ¥Z'596'0L 00'692'29 LNIVIN QYOH AYMHOIH
0-995-2+04710

Pz SSYLLE sygeet 00°000'S INIVIN 3DOVEYO AYMHOIH
0-295-2402-10

¥5'68  GB'SKT S6'€2L A 00°00£'} S31ddNS AYMHOIH
: 0-926-2102-10

18z 25'682'T VL 00°000°€ ALIDIELOTTE AVMHOIH
02252104710

98'8  0£0SS 0L°6vE 00°006 LANYILNI AVMHOIH
0125210210

a3sn 30NYIve SIONVYBWNONI SaIENAONT  s3unLIoNTdYa STUNLIONIAX3  SNOLLVINdONddY NOILdI4OS30 INNODIY
INIOM3Ad  QIYIBWNNONINN ONIGNYLSLNO" 3LVA-0LUYEA 3LVA-OL-HLNOW LNNODOY

0l:8Bed

MO esn

10 0} 10 wiol NN+ uo Bunosieg
020z/1€/21 Buipuz pouead o4
SIHHON 40 NMOL_

mcosm:&o._aad\ ,m ;m.mocm._n_rcjocm .wm.:ﬁ:ucmaxm u:u ycmrcm«m«m |

Wv6lylig Bl
0coz/eoiel -sied



0-089-220.4-10

66°0¢ iy'ec0'e 65°€9¢' L . pO'00Y'Y SIHOIT LIFLS - AL3HVS S8
0-225-2204-10

(uoISIAIQ 11A1D) 0Z0L

88'9¢ 18°59¢'9p 000 61°480°L2 00°€5Y'EL :i0) spgjoL

6¢°9¢ 06'9¢8 06°¢9¢ 00°000°t dIWOD INIFWIAOTINANN
) 0-8vL-020/-10

88°9¢ 8.'/99'8 72'890'G 00'€eL'cl ISNAAXS XYL 1G3N
0-6¥2-020.-10

88°0¢ £67190'2€ L¥'859'1e 000285 ALPENO3S WID0S
0-¥#L-020L-10

(ueuyoa[ag SNCBUR|BISIN) 8101

16°0L Liss'el 05°LYS 000 6£°690'€E 00°89¢° LY : 405 sjejoy

00°004 06°LYS 05'26V'62 00°000'0¢ TWYAOWIY 3341
0-828-8104-10

1028 9¥'66£'Z $6°009°2 00°000'G INIWIOV143Y HILNAWOD
0-928-810/-10

00°00S 00°00% 1 TOHOOTV % ONYA GILYANVIN
0-v28-810/-10

6LY 09'282'9 -09°'.82 00°000'9 ININTOVYNYIA ADNIOHIANT
0-0.,-8102-10

00'892 00'89L LISNVHL Tvdny
0-82.-8102-10

$E'8E . 60'960'C G6'c0¢’ L 00°00¥'E H3400 301340
0-925-8L04-10

00°00L°} 00°00L"} AVd WIHOW3NW 1S a8
0-015-8104-10

00°009 00°009 NIQHYM I3H4
1-208-8102-10

(eoueinsuy) 9402

10'5L oo'gbL'sl 00°0 00'%52'95 00°000°5. : oy sjejoy

10°6. 00°9r.L'81 00'v52'95 00°000°G. ALNMAVITIONYHNSNI
0-$2.-9102-10

(sauransuy) p10L

92°99 86'789'8 05'6.t'L 000 75°6e8'vlL 00°000°62 1 1o} sjejo ),

92’59 86'v89'8 06'6LY') 5588yl 00°000's2 diDo7
) 0-02/-7102-10

(RemybBiry) 2102

8¥°ee 94°G65°82Y 10°9.L1'09 00°0 £5°192'551 00°CEE' P9 10} sjejoy

00°000°t 00000t ONILSHL HILYM WHOLS
0-008-2102-10

00°000't 00000t ONINIVY.L AYMHDIH

a3sn JONVIVE SIONVHENNONI www%%wmﬁwwﬁ SAYNLIANIXT STUNLIANILX3 SNOILYIIHOYddY NOILIMOSTA LINNOOOY
ANAOHId  QIUIGWNNININN ONIGNY.LSLNO HYIA HONd 2LYA-OLHYIA 21VA-O1-HLNOW INNODOV

L1:ebed
MO desn

L0 0} L0 WO} AN U0 Buposjes
0202/1€/2 ) Bupuz pouad 104
SIHHOW 40 2>>mul..rl-

suoneudoiddy ¥ seouelquinoug ‘'sainyipusadxd Jo JUsWele)S

WY6BLpL:6 Bl
020Z/co/el #ed



6.'8€ G9'2.9'8L GeZeg' L 00°605'0E 1- S3HVIVS NOILLVLS H34SNvHL
Z-206-820.-10

8y'8e 00°L.2'SE 0089022 00°628'4G SHMYIVS NOILLYLS U34SNYHL
1-206-8204-10

(10308dsuj Buipiing) 9z0.

9z'08 60°0£E'6L 00°0 16°625'61 .00°098'8¢ 10§ sjejol

00°000'L 00000} ONINIVEL HOLOI4SNI ONIQTING
0-v59-9204-10

99’y v0°2EE 96°L92 00009 FOVTIW HOLO3dSNI ONIGTing
0-209-9204-10

-00°040'} 00°020°} FLNANOD HOLO3JSNI ONIGNG
0-2£5-9204-10

8229 50'822'9 $6'182'01 00°0L5'9L NSSHANOD YOLDICSNI ONIdTING
L-¥15-9204-10

€0'62 0£'2ES 02412 007062 ASNILXT UOLIISNIE ONIATiNg
. 0-015-920/-10

gy'8¢ 04°L08'C) 0£'269'L 00°000'0Z AHYIVS HOLDIASNI ONIGHUNG

1-106-9204-10

_ (uspieps Boq) vzoL

0L} £8°8vZ 9} 00°0 11182 00°0£5'91 :d0) spgjo)

00081 00081 (ASNIdX3 - WNEWITHINOILLIOAY
0-98.-v204-10

00°06¢ 00°06¢ AOV.LSOd SOH0J
0-¥9.-v204-10

001 £8'815°C iiiee 000082 ONNOd 904
. 0-094-9204-10

00°008'2 00'006'2 S334 ISNIDIT B04
0-v59-$204-10

00°009 00°00G A9YHN NIAHYM 900
0-209-v20L-10

00°06 00°0§ SIOILON TvOIT NIQUYM D04
0-pES-$204-10

00052 00062 ASNAdXE ©0d
0-01G-v20L-L0O

00°000'0L 00°000'0L AHVYTIVS NIZAHYM 900
1-20G-$204-L0

{fejeg - uawyoeles Jo pa) TZOL

a8'vs 2T 0.8'shL 00°0 82°859'9L1 00'620'22¢ 140} sjBj0]

¥£'6S Y0'615'621 96°08¥'091 00°'000'062 38 FAISLNO LNT - AL34VS S08
0-v69-220L-10

0006 LLp18'2L cevig'es 00'629'62 1Q ALNNOD HOLT - AL3A4VYS 808
0-$99-2204-10

00'001 000002 00°000'2 104834 TYNOIOZY - AL34VYS S04

a3sn FONVIVE SAONVHEWNONT www%%&mwﬁwwﬁ SIHNLIANIAXT SIUNLIONIAXT SNOILYINDOYddY NOLLAIYOS3Ia INNODOV
INIOHAd  QIUIGWNONINN ONIGNYLSLNO HYIA YO 31IVG-0LHY3A 2LVA-OL-HLINOW ANNOOOY

10 0} 10 woi gNN4 uo Buposieg
020z/Lere L Buipug poued io4
SINNON 40 NMOL

— : R —— — T —— WVY6L: L6 BwiL
suoljeldoliddy g seoueiquInoug ‘sainjipusdxd Jo JUSWSRIS

0e0z/zo/eL =eq

Z1:9bed
A 88N




0-016-€0L-10

vSve $9'9ET'G 9£'€9.'C 00°000'8 FIAOTANI ATHNOH HALNIO US
_ L-€05-V£04-10

69'9¢ 20°€99'62 8606121 007580 INIOV TYAIDINAWAIT
L-206-¥£04-10

(uonels saysuesl) 8Z0L

1zye 12°200'081 00°0 61°185'c6 00°'985'€L2 1 10§ s|@J0 L

8729 00¥28'l 00'920'€ 00°006'F VAA WHOLS - NOLLYLS HEASNYHL
0-008-820/-10

00°00) 00°008 00°008 LINYEd NOILYLS ¥I4ASNYHL
0-88/-8204-10

00°008 00°008 YHSO NOILYLS H34SNYHL
0-98/-820.-10

00°008 00°008 GOMHH NOILYLS ¥34NVYL
) 0-¥8/-8204-10

00°000'9L 00°000'91 INOW T1EM NOLLYLS H¥34SNVHL
0-28/-8204-10

65°6¢ 06'25.'26 0822’18 00°000'v¥ L NITOADTY - NOILVLS HIASNWHL
0-08/-820/-10

0000} 00051 00'06} - ALIAIONOT NOLLYLS HIASNYHL
Z-2EL-820L-10

66'6¢ gl'ezy $8°9.2 00002 V WHOZINN NOILLYLS H¥3ASNYYL
Z-0€4-8202-10

9.'81 £9°190'% L1866 00°000'G N B SHIVAIY NOLLY.LS YIASNYYL
) 0-00/-820.-10

99'9¢ 00188 00018 00'L68'L NOILYLINYS NOILYLS HIASNWHL
0-¥29-820.-10

90've z8°.61 8120} 00°00¢ FOVITHA NOILYLS HI4SNvHL
0-209-820.-10

1Z¥L Z0°sh6 86'951 00001} SINA ¥ SVO NOILYLS HAASNYAL
0-¥8$-8202-10

1Lez [AZAY A 85°/89 00°008' IOIHLOT T3 NOILLYLS YIASNYHL
0-225-8204-10

9. v¢ 08'Lv8 02'Z5Y 00°00¢'L ITINYILINI NOILVLS HIASNVHL
’ ‘ 0-125-8202-10

£6'6¢ $Lp51 9768 00°0v2 INOHJITIL NOILVLS H3ASNYHL
0-026-820.-10

10°) - ¥0'959'L 9691 00'¢/9'L ) ANYdAOYd NOLLYLS H3ASNYHL
0-616-820/-10

900y £T'86LL 22°102') 00°000' ISNHdX3 NOILVLS HAJSNVHL
0-016-8204-10

00°000'} 00°000'1 ONIOHIAWE NOLLYLS HIASNYHL
1-606-820/-10

assn A0NYIVE SIONVHEWNONT ww_ooz%&mw%wy_m SIUNLIANIIXT STUNLIONTXT  * SNOLLYIMdOHddY NOILLJIMOSIA LNNODIV
INZOYUZd  GIUISWNONINN ONIGNVLSLNG HYIA HORId ILVA-OL-¥YIA 3LYC-OL-HANOW LINNOOOV

¢ 0bBey

A Hesn -

L0 0} L0 Wo4 aNN4 uo Bunosies
020Z/Le/Z1 Buipuz polad 104

e S IO 4O N O e—
suopendoiddy ® seoueiqunoug ‘seinjipuadxd Jo JUSWE]S

NVBL P16 BullL
Qzoz/eo/ey =ed



6€'6Y 00°c79'1SV'y 16°L9v'88 000 60'19¢'S5Z'Y 00°55v'56L'8 sje30} Hodoy

(L-)10

65°6% 00°829°L5¥'Y 16°20¥'88 000 60°¥9£'s5Z'y 00°$5¥°56.'8 1oy sjjoy

(103uag 101uBg) PEOL

gLee L2°056'¢C9 000 £1°658'2¢ 00°905'96 1 10} sie10],

00°00Z 00002 TEVHNENIEY Sdidl ¥3IN30 ¥S
. 0-t¥8-p£0L-10

G162 05204 05262 00°000°'} ONILN{Ed ¥IINIO ¥S
) 0-0v8-¥£04-10

YevL 86°152 zy'evs 00°000'L S3ddNS ADI440 HILNAD S
0-8£8-£0/-10

66'66 €20 L184") 00'29.') YU9O0Hd NOLLIYLAN Y3LNIO US
0-9€8-¥£04-10

£0°2¢ G095 GZv9z 00628 AHES/HIVATY dINDT YIINIO WS
‘ 0-5E8-$£04-10

92'9% 19'86p £8° 49 00 0vL's JOVLSOd HIINIO HS
A 0-2£8-¥£04-10

992 8L661'C zZ'008 00°000' 3% LNIVIN HOIMILXT YIINIO WS
' 0-0£8-¥£02-10

26°vE G8'980'1L GL'E8S 00°049't IYACWIY HSYH L HIINIO WS
. 0-228-¥€04-10

00°000'c - 00°000'¢ TYAOWIY MONS ¥ILINTIO HS
0-028-¥£0.-10

00°001 00'05¢ 00°0s¢ ALIAZONOT ¥3LN3D ¥S
Z-2EL-¥€02-10

$1'82 11°0E0'S 69°'696'1 00°000°2 SINVHOOU HILNIO S
) . 0-vE9-¥€0L-10

£62 LL'616'E 62021 00°00L'Yy VNZLLNIVIN HOIMILNI HIAINIO ¥S
‘ 0-895-7£0L-10

98'vl 109212 £6°€LE 00°006'2 1v3aH ¥3INID S
0-€25-¥£04-10

6942 SY6LE'E 15°02G'} 00°006'G AlOIELOFTE ¥IINIO S
0-225-v£0.-10

8904 LVILL'L 8yl 00'692'Z 31 F18vD/LINYILIN] ¥IINTIO HS
0-125-¥£04-10

2622 00'6LG 00°L0Z 000ZL INOHJ HIUINID US
. 0-026-¥£02-10

15°2€ 00°026'S 00°00L'L 00°022'S IOIAYIS ONINYITO HFINIO ¥S
0-216-¥€0/-10

LE°0¢ 91842 A 00°00v ASNIAXA OSIN YIINIO HS

a3sn IONVIVE SIONVHENNONT www%%&w%wﬁ SIUNLIANIdX3 STUNLIONTAXT SNOLLYINdOHddY NOILJIMOSTA INNODOY
AN3VHId  (A3IUIBWNONINN ONIONVLSLNO HVIA HOIHd JLYQ-OL-HV3A F1va-OL-HLNOW ANNOOOY

Summm&

ADi UesN

10 0} L0 Woi NN uo Buposieg
020Z/1€/Z1 Bulpu3 pouad Jo4
_SIINON 40 NMOL

mco;mcaoaa,q ,w,.,moo,cmEE:ocm_ hmml_:%cmgx.u, wo EmEQEm o

WvY6ElpL:6 BWiL
0coz/co/el =ed



